
 

 
 

 
 

APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
 

FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

TWDB Use Only 
 

Name of Applicant:  ________________________ 
 
Date application received: ______________ 

 
Date administratively complete: ________________ 
 
 
 

 

This application is comprehensive, covering all loan and grant assistance applications for water 
and wastewater infrastructure financing through the various Texas Water Development Board 
(TWDB) programs.  The format of the application is intended to expedite the review process for 
both the applicant and TWDB staff. This application can be used by political subdivisions, 
including water supply corporations.  
 

Please submit one double-sided original and one indexed, electronic copy, via electronic storage 
media such as CD or flash drive using MS Word, Excel and/or Adobe Acrobat. 
 
Please submit your application to: 
 

Texas Water Development Board  
Water Supply and Infrastructure-Regional Water Planning and Development 
P O Box 13231 
1700 N. Congress Avenue, 5th Floor 
Austin, Texas  78711-3231 
(78701 for courier deliveries) 

A complete application consists of all of the applicable information and forms requested in this 
document. When preparing this application please review the Application and all Guidance and 
Forms, listed at the end.   

For more information, please contact your Regional Project Implementation Team at: 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/programs/swift/regional_project_teams.asp 

Thank you. 

 

 

 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/programs/swift/regional_project_teams.asp
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Part A: General Information 
1. The legal authority under which the applicant was created and operates.   

a)  TYPE A GENERAL-LAW MUNICIPALITY (Texas Local Gov’t Code Sec. 5.001) 
b)  TYPE B GENERAL-LAW MUNICIPALITY (Texas Local Gov’t Code Sec. 5.002) 
c)  TYPE C GENERAL-LAW MUNICIPALITY (Texas Local Gov’t Code Sec. 5.003) 
d)  HOME-RULE MUNICIPALITY (Texas Local Gov’t Code Sec. 5.004) 
e)  SPECIAL-LAW MUNICIPALITY (Texas Local Gov’t Code Sec. 5.005) 
f)  NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION (Business Organization Code Chapter 22) 
g)  NONPROFIT WATER SUPPLY OR SEWER SERVICE CORP. (Texas Water Code Chapter 67)  
h)  ALL DISTRICTS (Texas Water Code Chapter 49)  
i)  OTHER (attach) 

 
2. Applicant Name and Contact Information: 

Name: City of Springtown 

County: Parker 

Physical 
Address: 

102 East Second Street 
Springtown, Texas  76082 

Mailing 
Address: 

P.O. Box 444 
Springtown, Texas  76082 

Phone: (817)220-4834 

Fax: (817)523-3179 

Website: http://www.cityofspringtown.com/ 

 
 

3. Brief description of the project___Springtown New Wells in Trinity Aquifer__ 
 
4. Applicant’s Officers and Members:  

 
Name 

 
Office Held 

Tom Clayton Mayor 

Annette Burk Councilwoman Place 1 

Harold Buffington Councilman Place 2 

Dennie Harms Councilman Place 3 

Robert E. Wilson Mayor Pro Tem 

Greg Hood Councilman Place 5 

                      

                      

                      

                      

 
5. Applicant’s primary contact person for day-to-day project implementation. 

Name: Mr. Doug Hughes 

Title: City Administrator, City of Springtown 

Address: 102 East Second Street, Springtow, TX  76082 

Phone: (817)220-4834 

Fax: (817)523-3179 

Email: dhughes@cityofspringtown.com 

 

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.5.htm#5.001
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.5.htm#5.002
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.5.htm#5.003
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.5.htm#5.004
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.5.htm#5.005
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/BO/htm/BO.22.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/WA/htm/WA.67.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/WA/htm/WA.49.htm
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6. Applicant’s Consultants (Attach copies of all draft and/or executed contracts for consultant 
services to be used by the Applicant in applying for financial assistance or constructing the 
proposed project.): 

 
a) Applicant Engineer                              N/A      

Firm 
Name: 

Freese and Nichols, Inc  

Contact: Aaron Redder, P.E. 

Address: 2229 San Jacinco Blvd, Suite 330; Denton, TX 76205 

Phone: (940)220-4359 

Fax: (940)387-4677 

Email: amr@freese.com 

 
b) Bond Counsel                      N/A      

Firm 
Name: 

Norton Rose Fullbright US LLP 

Contact: Paul A. Braden 

Address: 2200 Ross Avenue, Suite 3600; Dallas, Texas  75201-7932 

Phone: (214) 855-8189 

Fax: (214) 855-8200 

Email: paul.braden@nortonrosefullbright.com 

 
c) Financial Advisor                     N/A      

Firm 
Name: 

Hilltop Securities 

Contact: Jim Sabonis 

Address: 1201 Elm Street, Suite 3500, Dallas, TX  75270 

Phone: (214) 953-4195 

Fax: (214) 953-4050 

Email: jim.sabonis@hilltopsecurities.com 

 
d) Certified Public Accountant (or other appropriate rep)                 N/A      

Firm 
Name: 

Weaver and Tidwell, LLP 

Contact: Kevin Sanford 

Address: 2821 West seventh St., Suite 700, Fort Worth, TX  76107 

Phone: (817) 332-7905 

Fax: (817) 429-5936 

Email: kevin.sanford@weaver.com 

 
e) Legal Counsel (if other than Bond Counsel)                  N/A      

Firm 
Name: 

Taylor, Olson, Adkins, Sralla & Elam 

Contact: George Staples 

Address: 6000 Western Place, Suite 200, Fort Worth, TX  76107 

Phone: (817) 332-2580 

Fax: (817) 332-4740 

Email: gstaples@toase.com 
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f) Any other consultant representing the Applicant before the Board   N/A      

Firm 
Name: 

           

Contact:            

Address:            

Phone:            

Fax:            

Email:            

 
7.   List the counties within the Applicant’s service area.  Parker & Wise 
 
8.  Identify the Applicant’s total service area population: 2741   
 
9.     Applicant is requesting funding from which programs?  Check all that apply. 

 
PROGRAM     AMOUNT REQUESTED 

a)   Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF)    $       
b)   Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF)   $       
c)   Texas Water Development Fund (DFund)   $       
d)   State Participation      $       
e)   Rural Water Assistance Fund (RWAF)       $       
f)   State Water Implementation Fund for Texas (SWIFT) $ 1,390,000 
g)   Economically Distressed Areas Program (EDAP)   $       
h)   If other please explain:           $       

 
10.       Other Funding Sources:  Provide a list of any other funding source(s) being utilized to complete 

the project, including Applicant’s local contribution, if any, or commitments applied for and/or 
received from any other funding agency for this project or any aspect of this project.  Provide 
commitment letters if available.  Additional funding sources must be included within the 
Project Budget (TWDB-1201). 

Funding 
Source 

Type of Funds 
(Loan/Grant) Amount ($) 

Date Applied 
 for Funding 

Anticipated or 
Funding Secured 

Date 

                                                       

                                                       

                                                       

                                                       

Total 
Funding 
from All 
Sources 

  
$           

  

 
Comments:            
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11. Applicant is requesting funding for which phase(s)?  Check all that apply. 
 

 Planning 
  Acquisition 
  Design 

 Construction 
 
12. Is Applicant requesting funding to refinance existing debt? 

 Yes If yes, attach a copy of the document securing the debt to be refinanced.   
   Attached document 

 No 
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Part B: Legal Information 
 
13. Cite the legal authority under which the Applicant can issue the proposed debt including the 

authority to make a proposed pledge of revenues. Subchapter C of Chapter 271 of Tx Local Govt 
Code; Chapter 1502 of Tx Govt Code   

 
14. What type of pledge will be used to repay the proposed debt? 

  Systems Revenue 
 Taxes 
 Combination of systems revenues and taxes 

  Other (Contract Revenue, etc.) 
 

15. Provide the full legal name of the security for the proposed debt issue(s).   City of Springtown, 
Texas, Combination Tax and Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2017 
 
16. Describe the pledge being offered and any existing rate covenants.  Ad valorem tax pledge & 
surplus WW System revenues 
 
 
17. Attach the resolution from the governing body requesting financial assistance. 

TWDB-0201A (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/)   
 Attached Resolution   

 
18.  Attach the Application Affidavit   

TWDB-0201 (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/) 
 Attached Applicant Affidavit  

 
19.  Attach the Certificate of Secretary  

TWDB-201B (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/)  
 Attached Certificate of Secretary  

 
 20. Is the applicant a Water Supply Corporation (WSC)?  

         Yes If yes, attach each of the following: 
    Articles of Incorporation 
    Certificate of Incorporation from the Texas Secretary of  

State evidencing that the current Articles of Incorporation are 
on file with the Secretary 

    By-laws and any amendments  
 Certificate of Status from the Texas Secretary of State (i.e. 

Certificate of Existence) 
 Certificate of Account Status from the Texas Comptroller of 

Public Accounts (certifies that the WSC is exempt from the 
franchise tax and that the WSC is in good standing). 

          No 
 
21. Is the applicant proposing to issue revenue bonds? 

 Yes If yes, attach copies of the most recent resolution/ordinance(s) authorizing  
any outstanding parity debt. This is essential to insure outstanding bond 
covenants are consistent with covenants that might be required for TWDB 
financing. 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/
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 Attached resolution/ordinance(s) 
 

 No 
 
22. Does the applicant possess a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN)? 

 Yes If yes, attach a copy of the CCN and service area map showing the areas  
the applicant is allowed to provide water or wastewater services. 

 Attached CCN and service area map 
   No  If no, indicate the status of the CCN.             

 N/A 
 
23. Has the applicant been the subject of any enforcement action by the Texas Commission on 

Environmental Quality (TCEQ), the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), or any other entity 
within the past three years?  

 Yes If yes, attach a brief description of every enforcement action within  
  the past three years and action(s) to address requirements.  

     Attached 
  No 

 
24. Are any facilities to be constructed or the area to be served within the service are of a 

municipality or other public utility?  
 Yes If yes, has the applicant obtained an affidavit stating that the utility does not  

object to the construction and operation of the services and facilities in its 
service area? 

 If yes, attach a copy of the affidavit. 
  Attached affidavit 

 If no, provide an explanation as to why not. The is a water well 
location and will have no effect on the water utility. 
 

   No 
 

25. If the assistance requested is more than $500,000 a Water Conservation Plan (WCP) is required.  

The WCP cannot be more than FIVE years old and must have been adopted by the applicant. 
Has the applicant adopted a Board-approved WCP?  (Check one and attach requested 
information, if any.) 

 Yes  Enter date of Applicant’s WCP adoption: March 24, 2016 
  No If no, attach a copy of a draft Water Conservation Plan and Drought  
   Contingency Plan prepared in accordance with the TWDB WCP Checklist  
   (http://www.twdb.state.tx.us/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-1968.pdf)  
    Attached Draft WCP and Drought Contingency Plan 

 Attached Utility Profile TWDB-1965 
http://www.twdb.state.tx.us/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-1965.pdf 

 N/A  (Request is $500,000 or less per Water Code §§ 15.106(c), 17.125(c),  
17.277(c), and 17.857(c)) 

 
Note: If the applicant will utilize the project financed by the TWDB to furnish services to 
another entity that in turn will furnish services to the ultimate consumer, the requirements 
for the WCP may be met through contractual agreements between the applicant and the 
other entity providing for establishment of a water conservation plan. The provision 
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requiring a WCP shall be included in the contract at the earliest of: the original execution, 
renewal or substantial amendment of that contract, or by other appropriate measures. 

 
 
26.  Does the applicant provide retail water services? 

  Yes  If yes, has the applicant already submitted to the TWDB the annual water  
   use survey of groundwater and surface water for the last THREE years?  

 Yes 
        No If no, please download survey forms and attach a copy of  

the completed water use surveys to the application. 
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/waterplanning/waterusesurvey/index.asp 

       Attached Water Use Survey 
 No 

 
27. Is the applicant a retail public utility that provides potable water? 

   Yes If yes, has the applicant already submitted the most recently required water  
   loss audit to the TWDB?  

 Yes 
 No If no, and if applying for a water supply project, please  

complete the online TWDB Water Audit worksheet found at  
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/resources/waterloss
-resources.asp and attach a copy to the application.   

       Attached TWDB Water Audit worksheet 
   No  

 
28.  Does the Applicant provide wastewater services? 
   Yes    

 No 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/resources/waterloss-resources.asp
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/resources/waterloss-resources.asp
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Part C: Financial Information 
 
Regional or wholesale providers, complete questions 29-31.  
Retail providers, complete questions 32-34.  
 
29. List top TEN customers of the system by annual usage in gallons and percentage of total usage, 
including whether any are in bankruptcy. 

 

Customer Name 
Annual Usage 

(gal) Percent of Usage 
Bankruptcy 

(Y/N) 

                                            

                                            

                                            

                                            

                                            

                                            

                                            

                                            

                                            

                                            

 
 Comments:            
 
 
30. List the top TEN customers of the system by gross revenues and percent of total revenues, including 
whether any are in bankruptcy 

Customer Name 
Annual 

Revenue($) Percent of Revenue 
Bankruptcy 

(Y/N) 
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31. Provide a summary of the wholesale contracts with customers 

 
 

Contract Type 

 
Minimum 
annual 
amount 

 
Usage fee 
per 1,000 
gallons 

Annual 
Operations 

and 
Maintenance 

 
Annual 
Capital 
Costs 

 
 

Annual 
Debt 

Service 

 
 
 

Other 

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 

 
32. List top TEN customers of the water and/or wastewater system by annual revenue with 
corresponding usage and percentage of total use, including whether any are in bankruptcy. 
 

a. WATER 

Customer Name 
Annual Usage 

(gal) 
Percent of Total 
Water Revenue 

Bankruptcy 
(Y/N) 

City of Springtown 8,947,000 10.8 N 

SISD 3,126,000 3.7 N 

SISD 2,184,000 2.6 N 

City of Springtown 1,681,000 2.0 N 

Springtown Laser Wash 1,299,000 1.5 N 

Peak Management 1,098,000 1.3 N 

Karl Klement Properties 1,083,000 1.3 N 

Dauenhauer Construction 872,000 1.0 N 

Brookshire Food Store #126 563,000 0.7 N 

SISD 553,000 0.6 N 
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b. WASTEWATER 

Customer Name 
Annual Usage 

(gal) 
Percent of Total 

Wastewater Revenue 
Bankruptcy 

(Y/N) 

City of Springtown 8,948,000 12.4 N 

SISD 2,024,000 2.8 N 

Springtown Laser Wash 1,257,000 1.7 N 

Peak Management 1,106,000 1.5 N 

Karl Klement Properties 1,052,000 1.5 N 

Dauenhauer Construction 704,000 1.0 N 

Woody Creek B-B-Q 563,000 0.08 N 

Brookshire Food Store #126 555,000 0.08 N 

SISD 549,000 0.08 N 

Good Morning & China Express 531,000 0.07 N 

 

 
33. Current Average Residential Usage and Rate Information 

Service 

 
Date of Last 

Rate 
Increase 

Avg. 
Monthly 
Usage 

(gallons) 

 Avg. 
Monthly Bill 

($) 

Avg. 
Monthly 
Increase 

Per 
Customer($) 

Projected Monthly 
Increase Necessary 

($) 

Water 10/27/2016 5000 59.48 7.18 7.18 

Wastewater 09/15/2015 5000 44.28 1.0 0 

 
34. Provide the number of customers for each of the past five years. 

Year Number of 
Customers 

2016 1292 

2015 1277 

2014 1255 

2013 1206 

2012 1204 

  
All applicants complete questions 35-51 of the financial section, as applicable. 
 
35. Disclose all issues that may affect the project or the applicant's ability to issue and/or repay debt 

(such as anticipated lawsuits, judgments, bankruptcies, major customer closings, etc.).  
 NA 
 
36. Has the applicant ever defaulted on any debt?  

  Yes If yes, disclose all circumstances surrounding prior default(s).            

  No 
 
37. Does the applicant have taxing authority?  

  Yes  

  No 
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38. Provide the last five-years of data showing total taxable assessed valuation including net ad 
valorem taxes levied, corresponding tax rate (detailing debt service and general purposes), and 
tax collection rate.  

 
Comments:            
 
39.  Attach the last five-years of tax assessed values delineated by Classification (Residential, 

Commercial and Industrial). If applicant does not have taxing authority, provide the 
assessed values of the county. 

 
a)  2016 attached 
b)  2015 attached 
c)  2014 attached 
d)  2013 attached 
e)  2012 attached 
 

40.  Attach the direct and overlapping tax rate table:  
  Attached tax rate table 
 
41. Provide the current top TEN taxpayers showing percentage of ownership to total assessed 

valuation. State if any are in bankruptcy and explain anticipated prospective impacts in the 
Comments blank, below.  If any of these have changed in the past three years, please provide 
information on the changes to the top ten.  
 

Taxpayer Name Assessed Value Percent of Total Bankruptcy (Y/N) 
Enbridge Energy 13,862,340 8.6% N 

Riding and Roping 4,279,540 2.7% N 

Energy Transfer 2,867,000 1.8% N 

Oncor Electric 2,564,070 1.6% N 

Brookshire’s Grocery 2,193,340 1.4% N 

Heritage Clean 1,888,450 1.2% N 

JND Holdings 1,445,590 0.90% N 

Builders Capital 1,160,590 0.72% N 

Ward Welding 1,068,290 0.66% N 

Jude Management 932,360 0.58% N 

 
Comments:            
 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ending 
Net Taxable 

Assessed Value ($) 
Tax 
Rate 

General 
Fund 

Interest & 
Sinking 
Fund 

Tax 
Levy 

$ 

Percentage 
Current 

Collections 

Percentage 
Total 

Collections 

2016 161,337,662 0.6217 0.3309 0.2908 1003 94.9% 96.4% 

2015 158,074,806 0.6129 0.3175 0.2954 969 98.4% 99.3% 

2014 144,205,944 0.6250 0.3000 0.3215 901 98.3% 100.3% 

2013 143,368,454 0.6230 0.3015 0.3215 893 97.8% 100.2% 

2012 139,775,930 0.6230 0.3861 0.2370 870 97.5% 99.8% 
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42. Provide the maximum tax rate permitted by law per $100 of property value.  $1.50 
 
43. Does the applicant collect sales tax?  

  Yes Provide the sales tax collection history for the past five years. 
 

Fiscal Year 
Ending Total Collections 

2016 1,142,662 

2015 1,052,099 

2014 924,752 

2013 953,042 

2012 920,000 

 

  No 
 
44.  Indicate the tax status of the proposed loan? 
  Tax-Exempt 
  Taxable 
 
45. Proforma (Select one of the four listed below) Please be sure the proforma reflects the 

schedule requested, including multi-phased funding options.  
a. System revenues are anticipated to be used to repay the proposed debt.  Attach a proforma   

indicating the following information for each year the debt is outstanding: 

  projected gross revenues 

  operating and maintenance expenditures 

  outstanding and proposed debt service requirements 

  net revenues available for debt service and coverage of current and proposed 
debt paid from revenues 

 
b. Taxes are anticipated to be used to repay the proposed debt.  Attach a pro forma indicating 

the following information for each year the debt is outstanding: 

  outstanding and proposed debt service requirements 

    the tax rate necessary to repay current and proposed debt paid from taxes 

   list the assumed collection rate and tax base used to prepare the schedule 
 

c. Combination of system revenues and taxes to be used to repay the proposed debt.  Attach a 
pro forma indicating the following information for each year the debt is outstanding: 

  projected gross revenues, operating and maintenance expenditures, net revenues 
available for debt service 

   outstanding and proposed debt service requirements 

  the tax rate necessary to pay the current and proposed debt 

  list the assumed collection rate and tax base used to prepare the schedule 
 

d. Another type of pledge will be used to repay the proposed debt.  Attach a pro forma with 
information for each year the debt is outstanding, which includes projected revenues, annual 
expenditures, outstanding debt requirements, and revenues available for debt service. 

 Attached 
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46. Attach a FIVE year comparative system operating statement (not condensed) including audited 

prior years and an unaudited year-to-date statement.  Unaudited year-to-date statement must 
reflect the financial status for a period not exceeding the latest six months. 
  Attached Operating Statement. 

 
 
47. Attach ONE copy of an annual audit of financial statements, including the management letter, for 

the preceding fiscal year prepared by a certified public accountant or firm of accountants and, if 
the last annual audit was more than 6 months ago, then, provide interim financial information. 
  Attached Annual Audit 
  Attached Management Letter 
  If applicable, attached interim financial information 

 
48. Does the applicant have any outstanding debt? (Check all that apply) 

  Yes, General obligation debt 

  Yes, Revenue debt 

  Yes, Authorized but unissued debt 

  No 
 

49.   Attach a listing of total outstanding debt and identify the debt holder. Segregate by type (General  
 Obligation or Revenue) and present a consolidated schedule for each, showing total annual  
 requirements.  Note any authorized but unissued debt.  

a. General Obligation Debt: 
   Yes 
    Attached schedule.  The schedule should also identify the debt  
    holder. 
   No 
 
 b. Revenue: 
   Yes 
    Attached schedule.  The schedule should also identify the debt  
    holder. 
   No 
   
 c. Authorized by Unissued Debt: 
   Yes 
    Attached schedule.  The schedule should also identify the debt  
    holder. 
   No 
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50. List the ten largest employers of the Applicant’s service area: 

Name Number of Employees 
Springtown ISD 373 

Brookshire Grocery 150 

Procycle Metals 53 

David’s Patio 49 

City of Springtown 49 

Enbridge Energy 38 

Roadside Grocery 25 

U.S. Post Office 23 

Sconic 20 

Chicken Express 20 

  
Comments (example, any anticipated changes to the tax base, employers etc.)            

 

 

51. Provide any current bond ratings with date received. 
 

 

Standard & 
Poor’s 

Date 
Received Moody’s 

Date 
Received Fitch 

Date 
Received 

G.O. N/A N/A A2 April 2017 N/A N/A 

Revenue N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 
52. Is the project intended to allow the applicant to provide or receive water or sewer services to or 

from another entity? 
  Yes.   If yes, the applicant must attach, at a minimum, the proposed agreement, contract,  
   or other documentation establishing the service relationship, with the final and  
   binding agreements provided prior to loan closing. 

 Attached  
  No. 
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Part D: Project Information 
 
53. Description of Project Need (for example, is the project needed to address a current compliance 

issue, avoid potential compliance issues, extend service, expand capacity, etc.): 
  

As Springtown continues to grow they must look at water supply strategies to provide for their 
citizenry. They currently get their water from Eagle Mountain Lake, water wells in the Trinity 
Aquifer as well as raw water purchased from TRWD.  This project will provide additional water 
from the Trinity Aquifer leading to a better mix of surface and groundwater supplies.  Additionally, 
it will reduce the dependency on surface water especially in times of drought. 

 
54. Description of Project, including a bulleted list of project elements/components, and alternatives 

considered (including existing facilities): 
 
This project will develop new wells from the Trinity Aquifer.  The new wells will provide the city 
better water supply mix between surface and ground water.  This mix of sources provides 
redundant water supply and lessens surface water dependency which can be adversely 
influenced in times of drought. The proposed wells will be designed and constructed to TCEQ 
public water well standards and then pumped into ground storage tanks.  From the tanks, the 
water will be pumped into the city’s water system. 
 

o Design/construction of new wells 
▪ This includes but is not limited to: 

• Preparing an Environmental Assessment (EA) for SWIFT funding 
requirement.  

• Preparing an Engineering Design Report for the TWDB. 

• Testing the well water in accordance to TCEQ requirements 

• Inspections as needed 
o Design/construction of appurtenances to facilitate pumping into ground storage tank(s) 

▪ This includes but is not limited to the water lines that goes from the water well to 
the water storage tanks. 

o Design/construction of appurtenances to facilitate pumping into the city’s water system 
o Acquisition of one piece property. The city owns property for one of the two wells. 

 
 

A complete preliminary engineering feasibility data must include:  
a. A description and purpose of the project, including existing facilities.  

• Note: CWSRF and DWSRF must address issues scored in Intended Use Plan 
submittal 

  Attached  
b. If project is for Construction only, then attach the appropriate Engineering   

Feasibility Report: 
a) Water (TWDB-0555 at 
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-0555.pdf)  

 Attached 
 

b) Wastewater (TWDB-0556 at 
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-0556.pdf) 

 Attached 
 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-0555.pdf
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-0556.pdf
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c. DWSRF applicants must complete a Projected Draw Schedule  
(TWDB-1202 at http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-1202.xls) 

 
55. Water Made Available (For projects requesting a construction component): 

a. New supply___81_____(acre-feet/year) _____1,390,000____($) capital cost 

o The increase in the total annual volume of water supply that will be made available to the 

recipient(s) by the proposed project. 

o Water Plan project examples: new groundwater wells, reservoir development, pipelines to 

sources. 

 

b. New Conservation savings______________(acre-feet/year)  _________($) capital cost 

o Annual volume of anticipated water savings resulting from implementation of the proposed 

conservation project including water loss) and other conservation activities,  

o Water Plan project examples: municipal conservation, advanced Water Conservation, on-

farm conservation, brush control, irrigation conservation. 

 

c. New Reuse supply ______________(acre-feet/year)                _________($) capital cost 

o Increase in the annual volume of (direct or indirect) reuse water supply that will be made 

available to the recipient(s) by the proposed project. 

o Water Plan project examples: direct reuse, non-potable reuse, recycled water programs. 

 

d. Maintenance of Current Supply______________(acre-feet/year)  _________($) capital cost 

o Volume of recipients’ current supplies that will be maintained by implementing the 

proposed project 

o Water Plan project examples: None. Not a water plan project.  (Examples of these type 

projects: treatment rehabilitation, system storage facilities, system upgrades). 

 
56. Project Location: 
 See Attached map. 
 
 Attach a map of the service area and drawings as necessary to locate and describe the project.  

The map should show the project footprint and major project components. 
 Attached 

 
57.  Attach the Census tract numbers in which the applicant’s service area is within.  The Census 

tracts within your area may be found at: 

http://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml 
 
   
   Please follow these steps:   

• Select Advanced Search.  

• Select the Geographies button located below Topics (left side of page).  

• On the top of the window select the Name tab.  

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/doc/TWDB-1202.xls
http://factfinder.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml
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• In the text box, type "All Census Tracts within___" (Fill in the blank with the name 
of a County Subdivision or a Place.) Select "Go".  

• If your town is a County Subdivision, select the geography labeled "All Census 
Tracts (or parts) within City, County, State" from the Geography Results. If your 
town is a place select the geography labeled "All Census Tracts (or parts) full-or-
partially within City, State" from the Geography Results.  

• Close the Geographies Search window.  

• Use the Topics on the left side of the page to further refine your search or to select 
a table(s) from your search results. 

 
 Attached Census tracts 

 
58. Project Schedule: 

a) Requested loan closing date.   
December 5, 2017 

b) Estimated date to submit environmental planning documents. 
April 1, 2018 

c) Estimated date to submit engineering planning documents.  
July 1, 2018 

d) Estimated date for completion of design.   
August 1, 2018 

e) Estimated Construction start date for first contract.   
October 1, 2018 

f) Estimated Construction end date for last contract.  
October 1, 2019  
 
 

59. Attach a copy of current and future populations and projected water use or wastewater flows.  
Include entities to be served.   

  Attached 
 
60. Attach the most current itemized project cost estimate (include all costs and funding sources).  

Utilize the budget format provided (TWDB-1201 at   
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/ .  If applying for pre-construction costs only (i.e., 
P, A, D) then itemize only the relevant portions in the attached budget template 

 Attached 
 
 
61. Attach the appropriate Project Information Form: 

 Wastewater:  Attached a completed Wastewater Project Information Form  
WRD-253a  http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp 

 
  Water:  Attached a completed Water Project Information Form  

WRD-253d http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp 
 

62.     If the project is for Construction only, wastewater projects that involve the construction of a new 
plant or the expansion of an existing plant and/or associated facilities, attach evidence that an 
application for a new Texas Pollution Discharge Elimination System Permit or amendment to an 
existing permit related to the proposed project has been filed with the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality (TCEQ).  Final permit authorization must be obtained from the TCEQ 

http://factfinder2.census.gov/help/en/glossary/p/place.htm
http://factfinder2.census.gov/help/en/glossary/c/county_subdivision.htm
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/
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before funds can be released for construction activities.  
 Attached 
 No.  Provide explanation:       

 
 
63. If this project will result in: (a) an increase by the applicant in the use of groundwater, (b) drilling a 

new water well, or (c) an increase by the applicant in use of surface water, then the applicant 
must demonstrate that it has acquired – by contract, ownership or lease – the necessary property 
rights, groundwater permits, and/or surface water rights sufficient for the project before funds can 
be released for construction. 

 

a) Does the applicant currently own all the property rights, groundwater permits and surface 
water rights needed for this project? 

 Yes If yes, please attach the completed, appropriate form. 
1. WRD 208A (http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp) (Surface Water) 

  Attached            
2. WRD 208B ( http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp) (Groundwater) 

   Attached            
 No     
     N/A    

 
 
 

b) If all property rights, groundwater permits, and surface water rights, needed for this project 
have not yet been acquired, identify the rights and/or permits that will need to be acquired 
and provide the anticipated date by which the applicant expects to have acquired such rights 
and/or permits. 

Type of Permit 
Water Right 

Entity from which 
the permit or right 
must be acquired 

Acquired by lease 
or full ownership 

Expected 
acquisition date 

Permit / Water 
Right ID No. 

Water Well 
Application 

Upper Trinity 
Groundwater 
Conservation 
District 

N/A April 2018 N/A 

TCEQ Public Water: 
Approval To 
Construct  

Texas Commission 
on Environmental 
Quality 

N/A August 2018 TCEQ-10205 
TCEQ-10234 

TCEQ Public Water: 
Well Completion 
Approval to use 

Texas Commission 
on Environmental 
Quality 

N/A August 2019 TCEQ-10205 
TCEQ-10234 

     

                              

                              

                              

 
c) List any major permits not identified elsewhere that are necessary for completion of project. 

Also, list any more necessary minor permits that may involve particular difficulty due to the 
nature of the proposed project. 

Permit Issuing Entity Permit Acquired (Y/N) 
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64. Has the applicant obtained all necessary land and easements for the project?  
  Yes. If yes, attach the site certificate (ED-101 at   
   http://www.twdb.texas.gov/financial/instructions/index.asp 
    Attached 
 

 No.   If no, fill out the table below and describe the land or easements that will need to  
be acquired, provide the anticipated date by which the applicant expects to have 
the land or easements, and indicate if funding from TWDB is to be used for the 
acquisition. 

Description of Land 
or Easement Permit 

Entity from which 
the permit or right 
must be acquired 

Acquired by lease 
or full ownership 

Expected 
acquisition 

date 
To Be Funded by 
TWDB (Yes/No) 

Property Acquisition TBD Full Ownership April 2018 TBD 

                              

                              

 
 
 
65.  Has a Categorical Exclusion (CE), Determination of No Effect (DNE), Finding of No Significant 

Impact (FONSI), Record of Decision (ROD), or any other environmental determination been 
issued for this project?  

 Yes      
  Attach a copy of the finding. 

  No 
 
66. Is the project potentially eligible for a Categorical Exclusion (CE)/ Determination of No Effect 

(DNE) because it involves only minor rehabilitation or the functional replacement of existing 
equipment? 

      Yes  
 No 

 
67. Are there potentially adverse environmental or social impacts that may require mitigation or 

extensive regulatory agency or public coordination (e.g. known impacts to properties eligible for 
listing on the National Register of Historic Places; potentially significant public controversy; need 
for an individual permit from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers)? 

      Yes   
  If yes, attach additional information 

 No 
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Part E: State Water Implementation Fund for Texas (SWIFT) Applicants Only: 
 
68. Identify the type of SWIFT funding (If more than one funding option is being requested indicate 

the amount of funding for each): 
  Deferred      $      
 Low Interest Loan   $1,390,000 
 Board Participation   $      

 
69. For multi-year funding request or phased commitments, provide a schedule reflecting the closing 

dates for each loan requested. 
 Attached 

 
70. Notice to SWIFT Applicants: Texas Water Code Sec. 15.435(h) requires all recipients of 

financial assistance from the SWIFT to acknowledge any applicable legal obligations in federal 
law, related to contracting with disadvantaged business enterprises, and state law, related to 
contracting with historically underutilized businesses. Checking the boxes below serves as this 
acknowledgement.  

 
 As an applicant for financial assistance from SWIFT, I acknowledge that this project must 

comply with any applicable legal obligations in federal law related to contracting with 
disadvantaged business enterprises.  

 
 As an applicant for financial assistance from SWIFT, I acknowledge that this project must 

comply with applicable legal obligations in state law (Texas Government Code Chapter 2161 and 
Texas Administrative Code Chapter 20, Subchapter B) related to contracting with historically 
underutilized businesses.  

 
 
71.   Provide drafts of the following documents: 

   a. Proposed Bond Ordinance  
  Attached 

b. Private Placement Memorandum 
 Attached 
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Part I: Summary of attachments to application 
 
Following is a list of the documents that may be necessary in order to process this application. While not all of the 
listed information below may be required for all projects, an applicant should review the application carefully 
because incomplete applications will not be processed until all of this information has been provided.  In addition, 
please make sure your entity system name appears on every attachment.  Label each attachment with the 
number of the pertinent application section (i.e. “Part B5”).  

 
Check list for your convenience 

 
Part A   General Information 

No. 6  Draft or executed consulting contracts (engineering, financial advisor, bond counsel) 
No. 12 Existing security document for refinancing 

 
Part B   Legal  

No. 17 Resolution (TWDB-0201A) 
No. 18 Application Affidavit (TWDB-0201) 
No. 19 Certificate of Secretary (TWDB-201B) 
No. 20 Water Supply Corporations 

Articles of Incorporation 
Certificate of incorporation from the Texas Secretary of State 
By-laws and any amendments 
Certificate of status from the Texas Secretary of State  
Certificate of account status from Texas Comptroller   

No. 21  Resolution/ordinance authorizing the issuance of parity debt 
No. 22 Certificate of Convenience & Necessity 
No. 23 Enforcement Actions 
No. 24 Affidavit of No Objection 
No. 25 Two copies of the Water Conservation Plan (TWDB-1968 and TWDB-1965)  
No. 26 Water use surveys 

  http://www.twdb.texas.gov/waterplanning/waterusesurvey/index.asp 
No. 27 Water Loss Audit 

   http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/resources/waterloss-resources.asp 
 
 
Part C   Financial  

No. 39 Assessed Values by Classifications 
No. 40 Direct and Overlapping Tax Table 
No. 45 Proforma for each year of debt outstanding 
No. 46 Five year comparative system operating statement. 
No. 47 Annual audit and management letter 
No. 49 Outstanding debt schedule 
No. 52 Service provider contracts 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/waterplanning/waterusesurvey/index.asp
http://www.twdb.texas.gov/conservation/resources/waterloss-resources.asp
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Part D   Project Information   
No. 54a Preliminary Engineering Feasibility Data (PEFD)  
No. 54b Engineering Feasibility Report  

  Water (TWDB-0555)  
  Wastewater (TWDB-0556) 

No. 54c Project Draw Schedule (TWDB-1202) 
No. 56 Project Map 
No. 57 Census Tract(s) 
No. 59 Current and future populations and projected water use or wastewater flows 
No. 60 Project Cost Estimate Budget (TWDB-1201) 
No. 61 Wastewater Project Information Form (WRD-253a)  

 Water Project Information Form (WRD-253d) 
No. 62 Texas Pollution Discharge Elimination System Permit 
No. 63  If applicant has property rights and permits 

a. WRD-208A (Surface Water) 
b. WRD-208B  (Groundwater) 

No. 63c Additional Permits 
No. 64 Site certificate, evidencing land ownership for the project.  (ED-101) 
No. 65 Categorical Exclusion (CE), Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI), Record of Decision 

or any other supporting document 
No. 67 Social or environmental issues 

 
Part E  State Water Implementation Fund for Texas 

 No. 69 Multi-year/phased commitment schedule 
 No. 71a Draft Bond Ordinance 
 No. 71b Private Placement Memorandum 
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Part J: Guidance and Forms 
 

Part A  General Information 
  CWSRF – 31 TAC 375 
  DWSRF – 31 TAC 371 
  EDAP and SWIFT - 31 TAC 363 
  For more information visit,  http://www.twdb.texas.gov/about/rules/index.asp. 

 
Part D  Project Information  
  State Programs - 31 TAC 363 

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund - 31 TAC 371 
 Clean Water State Revolving Fund / Equivalency - 31 TAC 375 

Clean Water State Revolving Fund / Non-Equivalency - 31 TAC 375 
    

  
Guidelines for Environmental Assessment, Clean Water Non-Equivalency (ED-001A) 

  Clean Water EID Instructions (SRF-099) 
  Guidelines for Environmental Assessment, State Participation, DFund, RWAF and WIF, 
    (ED-001B) 
 Guidelines for Environmental Assessment, EDAP (ED-001C) 

Drinking Water EID Instructions (DW-001) 

 
 

Part H  Green Projects  and Project Components 
 Green Project Reserve: Guidance for determining project eligibility  

  (TWDB-0161) 
 

  

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/about/rules/index.asp
http://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.TacPage?sl=R&app=9&p_dir=&p_rloc=&p_tloc=&p_ploc=&pg=1&p_tac=&ti=31&pt=10&ch=363&rl=14
http://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.ViewTAC?tac_view=5&ti=31&pt=10&ch=371&sch=E&rl=Y
http://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.ViewTAC?tac_view=5&ti=31&pt=10&ch=371&sch=E&rl=Y
http://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.ViewTAC?tac_view=5&ti=31&pt=10&ch=375&sch=E&div=2&rl=Y
http://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.ViewTAC?tac_view=5&ti=31&pt=10&ch=375&sch=E&div=1&rl=Y
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P.O. BOX 444, 102 E. SECOND STREET, SPRINGTOWN, TX 76082  817-220-4834  FAX 817-523-3179 

 

 

 

 

 

 

April 28, 2017 

 

TO: Texas Water Development Board 

 

FROM: City of Springtown 

 

RE: Swift Application, Section 6 

 

It is the intent for the City of Springtown to enter into different contacts requiring 

services with any of the firms listed in Section 6 in the Swift application. Procurement of 

any contract requirement will occur if the city receives approval by the TWDB. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Doug Hughes 

City Administrator  

City of Springtown 
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AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 
COUNTY OF PARKER  § 
 
This AGREEMENT is entered into by the City of Springtown, Texas, hereinafter called “OWNER” and Freese 
and Nichols, Inc., hereinafter called “FNI.”  In consideration of the AGREEMENTS herein, the parties agree 
as follows: 
 

I. EMPLOYMENT OF FNI:  In accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT: OWNER agrees to 
employ FNI; FNI agrees to perform professional services in connection with the Project; OWNER 
agrees to pay to FNI compensation.  The Project is described as follows:  Two Water Wells funded 
through TWDB SWIFT. 

 
II. SCOPE OF SERVICES:  FNI shall render professional services in connection with Project as set 

forth in Attachment SC - Scope of Services and Responsibilities of OWNER which is attached to and 
made a part of this AGREEMENT. 

 
III. COMPENSATION:  OWNER agrees to pay FNI for all professional services rendered under this 

AGREEMENT in accordance with Attachment CO – Compensation which is attached hereto and made 
a part of this AGREEMENT.  FNI shall perform professional services as outlined in the “Scope of 
Services” for a lump sum fee of _______________ ($_______), for basic services and a not to exceed 
fee of ______________ ($_______) for special services Details concerning the fee are included in 
Attachment CO. 

If FNI’s services are delayed or suspended by OWNER, or if FNI’s services are extended for more 
than 60 days through no fault of FNI, FNI shall be entitled to equitable adjustment of rates and amounts 
of compensation to reflect reasonable costs incurred by FNI in connection with such delay or 
suspension and reactivation and the fact that the time for performance under this AGREEMENT has 
been revised. 

 
IV. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF AGREEMENT:  The Terms and Conditions of Agreement as set 

forth as Attachment TC shall govern the relationship between the OWNER and FNI. 
 
 
Nothing under this AGREEMENT shall be construed to give any rights or benefits in this AGREEMENT to 
anyone other than OWNER and FNI, and all duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this 
AGREEMENT will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of OWNER and FNI and not for the benefit of any 
other party. 

This AGREEMENT constitutes the entire AGREEMENT between OWNER and FNI and supersedes all prior 
written or oral understandings.  
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This contract is executed in two counterparts. 
 
IN TESTIMONY HEREOF, they have executed this AGREEMENT, the ____ day of ________________, 
2017. 
 
ATTEST:        City of Springtown, Texas 

(OWNER) 
 
         By:        

             
 
           
ATTEST:        Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

(FNI) 
 
         By:        
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Springtown\DRAFT TWDB SWIFT Water Wells Project  FNI______ 
 

 CO-1 OWNER______ 

ATTACHMENT SC 
  

SCOPE OF SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF OWNER 
 
ARTICLE I 
 

OVERVIEW: This project is funded via the TWDB -SWIFT loan programs and will develop 2 new wells 

from the Trinity Aquifer for the City of Springtown.  The new wells will provide the city better water supply 

mix between surface and ground water.  This mix of sources provides redundant water supply and lessens 

surface water dependency which can be adversely influenced in times of drought. The proposed wells will be 

designed and constructed to TCEQ public water well standards and then pumped into ground storage tanks.  

From the tanks, the water will be pumped into the city’s water system. 

 

BASIC SERVICE: Design Two Potable Water Wells 

 

Design: the water well to the yield capacity of the aquifer. Conceptual estimates vary from 50 gpm to 100 gpm. 

This estimate will be refined during the design phase. Note that the water well yields are finalized during the 

well development period. The well locations are known to be in the Trinity Aquifer and indicates a high 

likelihood of hitting usable water in the goal flowrate. However, in the event that a dry hole is drilled, moving 

the well to a new spot will be considered an additional service. 

 

 
A. STUDY PHASE: Provide Engineering Design Report per the requirements of the TWDB SWIFT 

funding requirements.  
 

B. DESIGN PHASE:  FNI shall provide professional services in this phase as follows.  Design will be 
for the TWDB SWIFT funded Water Wells in the City of Springtown, Texas. 

 
1. Obtain survey as described in the survey scope of services located under Article 1 D. 

2. Attend one kickoff meeting with the Owner together to discuss the scope, budget, and schedule of 
the project and to obtain information from the Owner needed for the design 

3. Review necessary regulatory provisions and incorporate the latest applicable standards into 
design. 

4. Prepare 30% level design plans and opinion of probable construction cost.  The 30% plans shall 
include a cover sheet with vicinity map, water general note sheet(s), water line alignment sheets, 
and plan and profiles of water wells. 

5. Provide 2 copies of the 30% design submittal to the Owner and attend one meeting with the Owner 
to review the 30% submittal and receive comments.   

6. Prepare 60% level design plans and opinion of probable construction cost.  Provide same sheets 
from 30% submittal and addressed City comments resulting from the 30% submittal with the 
addition of standard water details, erosion control plan and details. 

7. Provide 2 copies of the 30% design submittal to the Owner and attend one meeting with the Owner 
to review the 30% submittal and receive comments.   
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 CO-2 OWNER______ 

8. Upon receipt of 60% review comments from the Owner, prepare 90% design plans, technical 
specifications, and updated opinion of probable construction cost.  Provide same sheets from 60% 
submittal and addressed City comments resulting from the 60% submittal with the addition of 
standard water details, erosion control plan and details. 

9. Provide 2 copies of the 90% design submittal to the Owner and attend one meeting with the Owner 
and to review the 90% submittal and receive comments.   

10. Upon receipt of 90% review comments from the Owner, prepare Final drawings, technical 
specifications, and bid form. 

11. Provide 2 copies of the Final plans and specifications to the Owner for bidding. 
 

C. BID OR NEGOTIATION PHASE.  Upon completion of the design services and approval of “Final” 
drawings and specifications by OWNER, FNI will proceed with the performance of services in this 
phase as follows.  These basic services include provision of plans and specifications for one 
construction project, to be included with the TWDB SWIFT Water Wells.  Provisions for more than 
one construction project will be considered additional services. 

 
1. Assist OWNER in securing bids.  Issue a Notice to Bidders to prospective contractors and vendors 

listed in FNI’s database of prospective bidders, and to selected plan rooms.  Provide a copy of the 
notice to bidders for OWNER to use in notifying construction news publications and publishing 
appropriate legal notice.  The cost for publications shall be paid by OWNER. 

2. Maintain information on entities that have been issue a set of bid documents.  Distribute 
information on plan holders to interested contractors and vendors on request. 

3. Assist Owner by responding to questions and interpreting bid documents.  Prepare and issue 
addenda to the bid documents to plan holders if necessary. 

4. At OWNER request, FNI will assist OWNER in opening, tabulating, and analyzing the bids 
received.  Review the qualification information provided by the apparent low bidder to determine 
if, based on the information available, they appear to be qualified to construct the project.  
Recommend award of contracts or other actions as appropriate to be taken by OWNER.  Pre-
qualification of all prospective bidders and issuing a list of eligible bidders prior to the bid opening 
is an additional service. 

5. Assist the OWNER in conducting a pre-bid conference for the construction projects and coordinate 
responses with OWNER.  Response to the pre-bid conference will be in the form of addenda issued 
after the conference. Attend the tour of the project site after the pre-bid conference. 

6. Assist OWNER in the preparation of Construction Contract Documents for construction contracts.  
Provide ten (10) sets of Construction Contract Documents which include information from the 
apparent low bidders bid documents, legal documents, and addenda bound in the documents for 
execution by the OWNER and construction contractor.  Distribute five (5) copies of these 
documents to the contractor with a notice of award that includes directions for the execution of 
these documents by the construction contractor.  Provide OWNER with the remaining five (5) 
copies of these documents for use during construction. Additional sets of documents can be 
provided as an additional service. 

7. Furnish contractor copies of the drawings and specifications for construction pursuant to the 
General Conditions of the Construction Contract. DR
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 CO-3 OWNER______ 

 
D. CONSTRUCTION PHASE:  Upon completion of the bid or negotiation phase services, FNI will 

proceed with the performance of construction phase services as described below.  FNI will endeavor 
to protect OWNER in providing these services however, it is understood that FNI does not guarantee 
the Contractor’s performance, nor is FNI responsible for supervision of the Contractor’s operation and 
employees.  FNI shall not be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures 
of construction selected by the Contractor, or any safety precautions and programs relating in any way 
to the condition of the premises, the work of the Contractor or any Subcontractor.  FNI shall not be 
responsible for the acts or omissions of any person (except its own employees or agents) at the Project 
site or otherwise performing any of the work of the Project. 

 
These services are based on the use of FNI standard General Conditions for construction projects.  
Modifications to these services required by use of other general conditions or contract administration 
procedures are an additional service.  If general conditions other than FNI standards are used, the 
OWNER agrees to include provisions in the construction contract documents that will require the 
construction contractor to include FNI and their subconsultants on this project to be listed as an additional 
insured on contractor’s insurance policies. 

 
1. Assist OWNER in conducting one pre-construction conference with the Contractor. 

2. Establish and maintain a project documentation system consistent with the requirements of the 
construction contract documents.  Monitor the processing of contractor’s submittals and provide 
for filing and retrieval of project documentation. Review contractor’s submittals, including, 
requests for information, modification requests, shop drawings, schedules, and other submittals in 
accordance with the requirements of the construction contract documents for the projects 

3. Based on FNI’s observations as an experienced and qualified design professional and review of 
the Payment Requests and supporting documentation submitted by Contractor, determine the 
amount that FNI recommends Contractor be paid on monthly and final estimates for the water and 
sanitary sewer portions of the construction project, pursuant to the General Conditions of the 
Construction Contract. 

4. Make up to 8 total visits to the site (as distinguished from the continuous services of a Resident 
Project Representative) to observe the progress and the quality of work and to attempt to determine 
in general if the work is proceeding in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents.  In 
this effort FNI will endeavor to protect the OWNER against defects and deficiencies in the work 
of Contractors and will report any observed deficiencies to OWNER.  Visits to the site in excess 
of the specified number are an additional service. 

5. It is estimated construction will take 6 months to complete. Construction lasting long than this 
time will be considered an additional service. 

6. Notify the contractor of non-conforming work observed on site visits.  Review quality related 
documents provided by the contractor such as test reports, equipment installation reports or other 
documentation required by the Construction contract documents. 

7. Interpret the drawings and specifications for OWNER and Contractor.  Investigations, analyses, 
and studies requested by the Contractor and approved by OWNER, for substitutions of equipment 
and/or materials or deviations from the drawings and specifications is an additional service. 

8. Establish procedures for administering constructive changes to the construction contracts.  Process 
contract modifications and negotiate with the contractor on behalf of the OWNER to determine DR

AF
T



  ATTACHMENT CO 
 

Springtown\DRAFT TWDB SWIFT Water Wells Project  FNI______ 
 

 CO-4 OWNER______ 

the cost and time impacts of these changes.  Prepare change order documentation for approved 
changes for execution by the OWNER.  Documentation of field orders, where cost to OWNER is 
not impacted, will also be prepared.  Investigations, analyses, studies or design for substitutions 
of equipment or materials, corrections of defective or deficient work of the contractor or other 
deviations from the construction contract documents requested by the contractor and approved by 
the Owner are an additional service.  Substitutions of materials or equipment or design 
modifications requested by the OWNER are an additional service. 

9. Prepare documentation for contract modifications required to implement modifications in the 
design of the project.  Receive and evaluate notices of contractor claims and make 
recommendations to the OWNER on the merit and value of the claim on the basis of information 
submitted by the contractor or available in project documentation.  Endeavor to negotiate a 
settlement value with the Contractor on behalf of the OWNER if appropriate.  Providing these 
services to review or evaluate construction contractor claim(s), supported by causes not within the 
control of FNI are an additional service. 

10. Conduct, in company with OWNER’s representative, a final review of the Project for conformance 
with the design concept of the Project and general compliance with the Construction Contract 
Documents.  Prepare a list of deficiencies to be corrected by the contractor before recommendation 
of final payment.  Assist the City in obtaining legal releases, permits, warranties, spare parts, and 
keys from the contractor.  Review and comment on the certificate of completion and the 
recommendation for final payment to the Contractor(s). Visiting the site to review completed work 
in excess of two trips are an additional service. 

11. Revise the construction drawings in accordance with the information furnished by construction 
Contractor reflecting changes in the Project made during construction.  Two (2) sets of prints of 
“Record Drawings” shall be provided by FNI to OWNER. 

 

 

ARTICLE II 
 

SPECIAL SERVICES 
 
E. Surveying Scope of Service 

FNI will subcontract with Brittain and Crawford, Inc. to provide surveying services. 
 
1st Water Well Location on Springfield Road 
 

Item No.1: Survey and prepare an electronic and hard copy boundary survey map of the 
existing tank site on Springfield Road, indicating the location of newly set or discovered 
property corners, property lines, fences, all surface features and edge of pavement. 
 
Item No.2: Survey and prepare an overlay electronic topographic survey map adding in spot 
elevations and one-foot contours. 
 
Item No.3: Prepare one Sanitary Control Easement document 

 
2nd Water Well Location on Enderby Lane 
 

Item No.1: Survey and prepare an electronic and hard copy boundary survey map of the 
proposed well site on Enderby Lane, indicating the location of newly set or discovered 
property corners, property lines, fences, all surface features and edge of pavement. 
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Item No.2: Survey and prepare an overlay electronic topographic survey map adding in spot 
elevations, one-foot contours and trees. 
 
Item No.3: Prepare two Sanitary Control Easement documents and one Permanent Utility 
Easement Document.  

 
 
F. Environmental Permitting Evaluation 

a. To be completed. In current discussion with TWDB over the level of Environment review 
necessary 
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ARTICLE III 
 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES:  Additional Services to be performed by FNI, if authorized by OWNER, which 
are not included in the above described basic services, are described as follows: 

A. Field layouts or the furnishing of construction line and grade surveys. 
 
B. GIS mapping services or assistance with these services. 

 
C. Preparation of temporary and permanent easement documents. 
 
D. Making property, boundary and right-of-way surveys, preparation of easement and deed descriptions, 

including title search and examination of deed records. 
 
E. Providing services to investigate existing conditions or facilities, or to make measured drawings 

thereof, or to verify the accuracy of drawings or other information furnished by OWNER. 
 
F. Providing renderings, model, and mock-ups requested by the OWNER. 
 
G. Making revisions to drawings, specifications or other documents when such revisions are 1) not 

consistent with approvals or instructions previously given by OWNER or 2) due to other causes not 
solely within the control of FNI. 

 
H. Providing consultation concerning the replacement of any Work damaged by fire or other cause during 

the construction, and providing services as may be required in connection with the replacement of such 
Work. 
 

I. Investigations involving consideration of operation, maintenance and overhead expenses, and the 
preparation of rate schedules, earnings and expense statements, feasibility studies, appraisals, 
evaluations, assessment schedules, and material audits or inventories required for certification of force 
account construction performed by OWNER. 

 
J. Preparing applications and supporting documents for government grants, loans, or planning advances 

and providing data for detailed applications. 
 
K. Providing shop, mill, field or laboratory inspection of materials and equipment.  Observe factory tests 

of equipment at any site remote to the project or observing tests required as a result of equipment 
failing the initial test. 

 
L. Preparing Operation and Maintenance Manuals or conducting operator training. 
 
M. Preparing data and reports for assistance to OWNER in preparation for hearings before regulatory 

agencies, courts, arbitration panels or any mediator, giving testimony, personally or by deposition, and 
preparations therefore before any regulatory agency, court, arbitration panel or mediator. 
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N. Furnishing the services of a Resident Project Representative to act as OWNER’s on-site representative 

during the Construction Phase.  The Resident Project Representative will act as directed by FNI in 
order to provide more extensive representation at the Project site during the Construction Phase. 
Through more extensive on-site observations of the work in progress and field checks of materials and 
equipment by the Resident Project Representative and assistants, FNI shall endeavor to provide further 
protection for OWNER against defects and deficiencies in the work.  Furnishing the services of a 
Resident Project Representative is subject to the provisions of Article I, D and Attachment RPR. 

 
If OWNER provides personnel to support the activities of the Resident Project Representative who is 
FNI or FNI’s agent or employee, the duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of such 
personnel will be set forth in an Attachment attached to and made a part of this AGREEMENT before 
the services of such personnel are begun.  It is understood and agreed that such personnel will work 
under the direction of and be responsible to the Resident Project Representative.  OWNER agrees that 
whenever FNI informs him in writing that any such personnel provided by the OWNER are, in his 
opinion, incompetent, unfaithful or disorderly, such personnel shall be replaced. 

 
O. Preparation of Conformed or “As Bid” plans and specifications for use during the construction phase.  

These documents shall involve the incorporation of addenda items into the Contract Documents 
through modification of the electronic files and reprinting of the plans and specifications inclusive of 
the incorporated changes. 

 
P. Assisting OWNER in preparing for, or appearing at litigation, mediation, arbitration, dispute review 

boards, or other legal and/or administrative proceedings in the defense or prosecution of claims 
disputes with Contractor(s). 

 
 
ARTICLE IV 
 
TIME OF COMPLETION:  FNI is authorized to commence work on the Project upon execution of this 
AGREEMENT and agrees to complete the services within the following schedule: 
 
One year for Design and Construction from notice to proceed. 
 
If FNI’s services are delayed through no fault of FNI, FNI shall be entitled to adjust contract schedule 
consistent with the number of days of delay.  These delays may include but are not limited to delays in OWNER 
or regulatory reviews, delays on the flow of information to be provided to FNI, governmental approvals, etc.  
These delays may result in an adjustment to compensation as outlined on the face of this AGREEMENT and 
in Attachment CO.  
 
 
ARTICLE V 
 
RESPONSIBILITIES OF OWNER:  OWNER shall perform the following in a timely manner so as not to 
delay the services of FNI: 
 
A. Provide meeting space and coordinate equipment needs, room set up, and logistics for meetings 

outlined in Article 1. 
 

B. The owner shall procure the necessary easements for the project design and construction. 
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C. Designate in writing a person to act as OWNER’s representative with respect to the services to be 
rendered under this AGREEMENT.  Such person shall have contract authority to transmit instructions, 
receive information, interpret and define OWNER’s policies and decisions with respect to FNI’s 
services for the Project. 

 
D. Arrange for access to and make all provisions for FNI to enter upon public and private property as 

required for FNI to perform services under this AGREEMENT. 
 
E. Examine and provide prompt feedback on all submittals, draft reports, sketches, drawings, and other 

documents presented by FNI within a reasonable time so as not to delay the services of FNI. 
 
F. Furnish, or direct FNI to provide, Additional Services as stipulated in Attachment SC, Article II of this 

AGREEMENT or other services as required. 
 

G. Construct all improvements to the Owner’s WTP disinfection facilities based on FNI design 
documentation.  If the Owner chooses to bid out the project to an outside contractor, FNI shall be 
provided Additional Services for development of appropriate bid documents and general 
representation services with the Contractor. 

 
H. Bear all costs incident to compliance with the requirements of this Article IV. 

 
I. Provide relevant record drawings including those related to the water treatment plant, intermediate 

booster pump station, and the distribution pipeline between both respective facilities. 
 
 
ARTICLE VI 
 
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES: FNI and OWNER designate the following representatives: 
 
Owner’s Designated Representative – Doug Hughes, City Administrator, 102 E. Second Street, Springtown, 
TX 76082, (817) 220-4834; and e-mail dhughes@cityofspringtown.com 
 
Owner’s Accounting Representative – Same as above 
 
 
FNI’s Project Manager – Aaron Redder, 2220 San Jacinto Blvd., Ste. 330, Denton Texas 75205; Phone 940-
220-4340; email aaron.redder@freese.com 
 
 
FNI’s Accounting Representative – Stephanie Kirchstein, 2711 N. Haskell Ave., Ste. 3300, Dallas, Texas 
75204; Phone 214-217-2212; email stephaine.kirchstein@freese.com 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor, 
City Council and City Administrator 
City of Springtown, Texas 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of Springtown, Texas (the City) as of 
and for the year ended September 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
The City’s Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 



To the Honorable Mayor, 
City Council and City Administrator 
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Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and 
each major fund of the City, as of September 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial 
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information on pages 
4 through 12, and 48 through 51 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
February 14, 2017, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not 
to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
WEAVER AND TIDWELL, L.L.P. 
 
Fort Worth, Texas 
February 14, 2017 
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CITY OF SPRINGTOWN, TEXAS 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited) 
 

As management of the City of Springtown (the City), we offer readers of the City’s 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the 
City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. 
 

Financial Highlights 
 

 The assets of the City of Springtown exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most 
recent fiscal year by $12,450,692 (net position).  Of this amount, $2,334,074 
(unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. 

 The government’s total net position increased by $15,365.  This increase is 
attributed to paying down debt at a faster rate than assets are depreciating.  

 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Springtown’s governmental 
funds reported combined ending fund balances of $2,673,870, a decrease of 
$98,660 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 65% of this total amount is 
available for spending at the government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).  

 At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund 
was $1,737,096 or 55% of total general fund expenditures.  

 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

The discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of 
Springtown’s basic financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements are 
comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund 
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains 
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements 
themselves.  
 

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements 
are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Springtown’s 
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Springtown’s 
assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over 
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether 
the financial position of the City of Springtown is improving or deteriorating. 
 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position 
changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related 
cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items 
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and 
earned but unused compensated absences).  
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Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of 
Springtown that are principally supported by taxes and inter-governmental revenues 
(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a 
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public 
safety, culture and recreation, and public works. The business-type activities of the City 
include water and sewer activities. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 13-14 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to 
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or 
objectives. The City of Springtown, like other state and local governments, uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: 
governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the 
same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental 
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the 
fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term 
financing requirements.   
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental 
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, the reader may better understand the long-term 
impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund 
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The City maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is presented 
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General, 
Debt Service and Capital Projects funds. 
 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary 
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate 
compliance with this budget. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 15-18 of this 
report. 
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Proprietary Funds. The City maintains one type of proprietary fund. An enterprise fund 
is used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. The City uses an enterprise fund to account for 
its water and sewer activities.   
 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements.     
 
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 19-21 of this 
report.   
 
Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is 
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund 
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 22-
47 of this report. 
 
Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying 
notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning 
the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees 
and a budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund. Required supplementary 
information can be found on pages 48-51 of this report.   
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis  
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a 
government’s financial position.  As of September 30, 2016, the City of Springtown’s 
assets exceeded liabilities by $12,450,692. 
 
A significant portion of the City’s net position (79%) reflects its investment in capital 
assets (e.g., land, building, equipment, improvements, construction in progress, and 
infrastructure), less any debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  The 
City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending.  Although the City’s investment in its capital 
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to 
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
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City of Springtown’s Net Position 
 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Current and other assets 3,091,350$ 3,787,829$ 706,787$    788,508$    3,798,137$   4,576,337$   

Capital assets 12,070,333 12,353,521 10,102,511 10,153,972 22,172,844   22,507,493   

 Total Assets 15,161,683 16,141,350 10,809,298 10,942,480 25,970,981   27,083,830   

  

Deferred outflows of resources 330,290      166,243      77,765        31,646        408,055        197,889        

 

Long term liabilites 6,742,744   7,071,069   6,403,200   6,590,864   13,145,944   13,661,933   

Other liabilities 337,795      850,841      195,448      206,715      533,243        1,057,556     

Total liabilities 7,080,539   7,921,910   6,598,648   6,797,579   13,679,187   14,719,489   

Deferred inflows of resources 196,883      101,143      52,274        25,760        249,157        126,903        

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets 6,136,127   6,175,411   3,697,097   3,563,108   9,833,224     9,738,519     

Restricted for debt service 199,478      229,775      -              -              199,478        229,775        

Restricted for impact fees -              -              83,916        73,569        83,916          73,569          

Unrestricted 1,878,946   1,879,354   455,128      514,110      2,334,074     2,393,464     

Total Net Position 8,214,551$ 8,284,540$ 4,236,141$ 4,150,787$ 12,450,692$ 12,435,327$ 

Business-type  

Activities Activities Total

Governmental  

 
An additional portion of the City’s net position (3%) represents resources that are 
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.  The remaining balance of 
unrestricted net position ($2,334,074) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. 
 

 Overall, there is an increase of $15,365 in total net position during the fiscal year as 
mentioned above.  
  

Governmental Activities. Governmental activities decreased the City’s net position by 
$69,989, thereby accounting for a 0.84% decline in the net position.  Key highlights 
include a 11.58% increase in sales tax revenue compared to 2015, electric franchise 
showed a 1.56% decrease, tower rental fees had a decrease of 4.82%, licenses and 
permits had a 22.07% increase, service charges showed an increase of 3.70%, court 
revenue decreased 24.17% and miscellaneous revenue increased by 167%, resulting in 
an overall 15.96% increase in revenues.  For the most part, increases in expense 
closely parallel inflation and growth in demand for services. 
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Business-type Activities. Revenues in the City’s business-type activities totaled 
$1,548,054 for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2016.  Expenses for these 
activities were $1,729,509 resulting in a net loss of $181,455 from business-type 
activities before transfers.  The net position of business-type activities increased by 
2.06% to $4,236,141 in 2016, compared to $4,150,787 in 2015.  Generally, the City can 
only use this net position to finance the continuing operations of the water and sewer 
operations. 
 
City of Springtown’s Changes in Net Position 
 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Revenues:

 Program revenues:

 Fees, Fines and Charges for services 546,945$       641,726$    1,533,449$ 1,509,807$ 2,080,394$     2,151,533$     

Capital grants and contributions 266,809         8,191          -              -              266,809          8,191              

General revenues:

Property taxes 964,090         899,335      -              -              964,090          899,335          

Sales taxes 1,177,065      1,054,918   -              -              1,177,065       1,054,918       

Franchise Taxes 335,217         347,398      -              -              335,217          347,398          

Penalties and interest on property taxes 8,588             12,158        -              -              8,588              12,158            

Interest 11,567           5,051          1,978          362             13,545            5,413              

Miscellaneous 233,524         87,344        12,627        8,687          246,151          96,031            

Total revenues 3,543,805      3,056,121   1,548,054   1,518,856   5,091,859       4,574,977       

Expenses:

General government 1,282,111      1,002,632   -              -              1,282,111       1,002,632       

Public safety 929,545         954,575      -              -              929,545          954,575          

Service Department 56,197           58,245        -              -              56,197            58,245            

Highway and Recreation 701,505         730,269      -              -              701,505          730,269          

Parks and Recreation 191,710         166,165      -              -              191,710          166,165          

Interest on long-term debt 185,917         192,478      174,582      182,349      360,499          374,827          

Water and sewer operations -                -              1,554,927   1,504,184   1,554,927       1,504,184       

Total expenses 3,346,985      3,104,364   1,729,509   1,686,533   5,076,494       4,790,897       

Increase (decrease) in net position

before transfers 196,820         (48,243)       (181,455)     (167,677)     15,365            (215,920)         

Transfers (266,809)       (94,711)       266,809      94,711        -                  -                  

Increase (decrease) in net position (69,989)         (142,954)     85,354        (72,966)       15,365            (215,920)         

Net position - October 1 8,284,540      8,427,494   4,150,787   4,223,753   12,435,327     12,651,247     

Net position - September 30 8,214,551$    8,284,540$ 4,236,141$ 4,150,787$ 12,450,692$   12,435,327$   

Governmental  Business-type  

Activities Activities Total
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Expenses and Program Revenues – Governmental Activities 
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Expenses and Program Revenue – Business-type Activities 
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance 
with finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide 
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such 
information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular, 
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unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a City’s net resources 
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Springtown’s governmental funds 
reported combined ending fund balances of $2,673,870, a decrease of $98,660 in 
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 65% constitutes unassigned, 
undesignated fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s 
discretion.  The remainder of fund balance is reserved.  This indicates that it is not 
available for new spending because it has already been committed to pay debt service 
in the amount of $137,323 and capital projects in the amount of $799,451. 
 
The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City.  At the end of the current fiscal 
year, the unassigned fund balance was $1,737,096. The fund balance of the General 
Fund decreased by $6,655 during the fiscal year.  This decrease is attributable to 
increase in expenditures. 
 
The Debt Service Fund had an increase of $1,503 in fund balance.  Funds are reserved 
for the payment of debt service.  This increase is from greater than anticipated 
collections of property taxes.   The Capital Projects Fund experienced a decrease of 
$93,508 due to the construction needed to finish the creek widening project.  The 
remaining balance of $799,451 will be utilized for street resurfacing and other projects 
as designated by city council. 
 
In the General Fund, the City did not adjust the budget at mid-year as there was no 
anticipation of significant variances from budget. 
 
Proprietary Funds. The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of 
information found in the government-wide financial statements.   
 
Unrestricted net position of the proprietary fund is $455,128.  The water and sewer fund 
has a net position increase of $85,354.   
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, which is 
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015. The objective of this Statement is to 
provide guidance for determining fair value measurement for financial reporting 
purposes and provide guidance for applying fair value to certain investments and 
disclosures related to all fair value measurements. This Statement applies to all state 
and governmental entities. As the City only invests in investment pools and non-
negotiable certificates of deposit during year ended September 30, 2016, this Statement 
had no material impact on the City’s financial statements. 
 
The GASB issued Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool 
Participants, which is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015. This standard 
created an election option for external investment pools and pool participants (local and 
state governments) to continue to utilize amortized cost accounting, rather than fair 
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value, for certain investment pools and eliminated the reference to SEC 2a-7 guidance. 
Participants in qualifying pools would be permitted to continue measuring investments 
at amortized cost if they met certain criteria. The Texpool investment pools operate 
pursuant to investment strategies, operating procedures, and protocols that meet the 
criteria of GASB 79, and are, therefore, shown at amortized cost on the City’s financial 
statements. 
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital assets. The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and 
business type activities as of September 30, 2016, amount to $22,172,844 (net of 
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, 
improvements, machinery and equipment, office equipment, infrastructure and 
construction in progress. The total decrease in the City’s investment in capital assets for 
the current fiscal year was $134,649. This was comprised of a 2.30% decrease in 
governmental activities and a 1.50% increase for business type activities. 
 
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 
 

 Construction in Progress for the Water and Sewer replacement plant project of 
$377,474. 

 Additional cost related to the waterworks and Sewer plant of $20,492. 

 Sale of Farmer’s Market land of $70,566. 

 Sale of machinery and equipment for $7,500. 

 Completion of Creek Widening Project for the $600,000 noted in 2015 plus an 
additional $97,946 of cost. 

 Improvements to the Tabernacle in the amount of $105,192. 

 Purchase of new police car, lawn mowers, and other machinery and equipment 
for a total of $50,010. 

 Purchase of new computer software and hardware for $20,353. 

 Completion of ground storage tank rehabilitation for a total cost of $331,972. 

 Construction in progress for $116,942 for construction the Roy Lane Street. 
 

City of Springtown’s Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation) 
 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Land 5,302,014$    4,578,234$    210,649$       22,649$       5,512,663$    4,600,883$    

Building and Improvements 1,075,469      1,060,404      91,904            106,032       1,167,373      1,166,436      

Office Equipment 43,419            35,649            -                  -                43,419            35,649            

Machinery and equipment 147,464         218,512         63,980            95,828         211,444         314,340         

Waterworks and Sewer System -                       -                  9,275,284      9,646,242    9,275,284      9,646,242      

Infrastructure 5,385,025      5,860,722      -                  -                5,385,025      5,860,722      

Construction in Progress 116,942         600,000         460,694         83,221         577,636         683,221         

12,070,333$ 12,353,521$ 10,102,511$ 9,953,972$ 22,172,844$ 22,307,493$ 

Asset

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

 
Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note 3 of this report. 
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Long-term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt 
outstanding of $12,850,000. All of the debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the 
government.   
 
City of Springtown’s Outstanding Debt 
 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

General Obligation 1,865,000$ 2,030,000$ 175,000$     185,000$     2,040,000$    2,215,000$    

Certificates of Obligations 4,651,546    4,752,950    6,158,454    6,352,050    10,810,000    11,105,000    

Total 6,516,546$ 6,782,950$ 6,333,454$ 6,537,050$ 12,850,000$ 13,320,000$ 

Business-Type Activities Total

Type of Debt

Governmental Activities

 
During the current fiscal year the City’s total long-term debt decreased by $470,000.  
This decrease is a result of principal payments. 
 
Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 4. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 
The City of Springtown made the following changes to water rates for fiscal year 2016-
2017; all residential customers in the city shall have a base rate increase of $2.08 and 
.94, .98, 1.39, or 1.64/1,000 gal increase depending on usage with no change in sewer 
rates. The two commercial types, C1 and C2 were adjusted based on yearly average 
usage; C1 uses more than 5,000 gallons per month; an increase of $9.71 for base rate 
and $2.19, $2.36, $3.14, or $3.39/1,000 gal increase based on usage with no change in 
sewer rates. C2 usage is below 5,000 based on a yearly average. C2 base rate was 
increased by $3.08 with the same usage increases as C1 with no changes to sewer 
rates.  The property tax rate shall have a slight increase, 3% to .62170264 per $100 
valuation, compared to .61293025 for fiscal year 2015-2016.  Overall general fund 
revenues are expected to be higher in fiscal year 2016-2017 by $192,091, not including 
any transfers.  This can be attributed to an anticipated increase of sales tax collections. 
This year 47% of property tax collections have been designated for the Interest & 
Sinking fund for repayment of the City’s outstanding debt obligation.  This is lower than 
last year’s designation of 48.20%.  This is attributed to increased property values and 
new property added to the tax roll. 
 
Request for Information 
 
The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and 
creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances. If you have questions about this 
report or need additional information, contact the Finance Department, Attn: Finance 
Manager, at PO Box 444, Springtown, Texas 76082, call (817) 220-4834, or e-mail 
dtaylor@cityofspringtown.com.  
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Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 2,689,162$       376,759$          3,065,921$    

Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 325,311             119,915             445,226         

Net investment in direct financing lease 46,500               -                      46,500            

Internal balances 3,711                 (3,711)                -                  

Capital assets, net

Land 5,302,014         210,649             5,512,663      

Buildings and improvements 1,075,469         91,904 1,167,373      

Office equipment 43,419               -                      43,419            

Machinery and equipment 147,464             63,980 211,444         

Waterworks and sanitary sewer system -                   9,275,284 9,275,284      

Infrastructure 5,385,025         -                   5,385,025      

Construction in progress 116,942             460,694             577,636         

Restricted deposits and investments -                   208,238             208,238         

Net pension asset 26,666               5,586                 32,252            

Total assets 15,161,683       10,809,298       25,970,981    

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred gain on refunding 39,512               -                   39,512            

Deferred outflows related to pensions 290,778             77,765 368,543         

Total deferred outflows of resources 330,290             77,765               408,055         

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 299,473             58,860               358,333         

Accrued payroll and related liabilities 38,322               12,266               50,588            

Deposits -                      124,322             124,322         

Noncurrent liabilities

Due within one year 345,072             236,353             581,425         

Due in more than one year 6,397,672         6,166,847         12,564,519    

Total liabilities 7,080,539         6,598,648         13,679,187    

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows related to pensions 196,883             52,274 249,157         

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 6,136,127         3,697,097         9,833,224      

Restricted for debt service 199,478             -                      199,478         

Restricted for impact fees -                      83,916               83,916            

Unrestricted 1,878,946         455,128             2,334,074      

Total net position 8,214,551$       4,236,141$       12,450,692$ 
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Program Revenues

Fees, Fines and Operating Capital Primary Government

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type

Program Activities Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Primary government

Governmental activities

General government 1,282,111$     505,494$                  -$                   266,809$          (509,808)$          -$                   (509,808)$      

Public safety 929,545          16,435                      -                     -                     (913,110)             -                      (913,110)         

Service department 56,197             -                             -                     -                     (56,197)               -                      (56,197)           

Highways and streets 701,505          -                             -                     -                     (701,505)             -                      (701,505)         

Parks and recreation 191,710          25,016                      -                     -                     (166,694)             -                      (166,694)         

Interest on long-term debt 185,917          -                             -                     -                     (185,917)             -                      (185,917)         

Total governmental activities 3,346,985       546,945                    -                     266,809            (2,533,231)         -                      (2,533,231)     

Business-type activities

Water and sewer 1,729,509       1,533,449                 -                     -                     -                       (196,060)           (196,060)         

Total business-type activities 1,729,509       1,533,449                 -                     -                     -                       (196,060)           (196,060)         

Total primary government 5,076,494$     2,080,394$              -$                   266,809$          (2,533,231)         (196,060)           (2,729,291)     

General revenues and transfers

Taxes

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 964,090              -                      964,090          

Sales taxes 1,177,065           -                      1,177,065       

Franchise taxes on gross receipts 335,217              -                      335,217          

Penalties and interest on property taxes 8,588                   -                      8,588               

Interest on investments 11,567                1,978                 13,545            

Tap fees -                       263                     263                  

Miscellaneous 233,524              12,364               245,888          

Transfers (266,809)             266,809             -                   

Total general revenues and transfers 2,463,242           281,414             2,744,656       

Change in net position (69,989)               85,354               15,365            

NET POSITION, beginning of year 8,284,540           4,150,787         12,435,327    

NET POSITION, end of year 8,214,551$        4,236,141$       12,450,692$  

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position
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Debt Capital Total

General Service Projects Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds

Cash and cash equivalents 1,752,388$    137,323$   799,451$       2,689,162$    

Receivables

Property taxes, net of allowance for

doubtful accounts of $1,244 20,007 15,655 -                   35,662            

Accounts receivable, net of allowance 

for doubtful accounts of $8,151 76,958 -               -                   76,958            

Due from other governments 212,691          -               -                   212,691          

Due from other funds 3,711              -               -                   3,711              

Net investment in direct financing lease -                   46,500 -                   46,500            

TOTAL ASSETS 2,065,755$    199,478$   799,451$       3,064,684$    

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 271,038$       -$            -$                271,038$       

Accrued payroll and related liabilities 38,322            -               -                   38,322            

Due to other funds -                   -               -                   -                   

Total liabilities 309,360          -               -                   309,360          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - property tax 19,299 15,655 -                   34,954            

Unavailable revenue - lease receivable -                       46,500        -                   46,500            

Total deferred inflows of resources 19,299            62,155        -                   81,454            

FUND BALANCES

Restricted

Debt service -                   137,323      -                   137,323          

Capital projects -                   -               799,451          799,451          

Unassigned 1,737,096      -               -                   1,737,096      

Total fund balances 1,737,096      137,323      799,451          2,673,870      

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 2,065,755$    199,478$   799,451$       3,064,684$    

 

ASSETS
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Total fund balances - governmental funds 2,673,870$       

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial

resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds

balance sheet. 12,070,333       

Net pension asset on the statement of net position does not provide

current financial resources and therefore are not reported in the

governmental funds balance sheet. 26,666             

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources are not current financial

resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds

balance sheet. 133,407           

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require current financial

resources, therefore interest payable is not reported as a liability in the

governmental funds balance sheet. (28,435)            

Revenues earned but not available within sixty days of the year end are

not recognized as revenue on the fund financial statements. 81,454             

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and related items and

compensated absences, are not due and payable in the current period

and therefore are not reported in the fund financial statements. (6,742,744)        

Net position of governmental activities 8,214,551$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 

position are different because:
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REVENUES

Taxes and franchise fees 2,019,306$     468,679$        -$                 2,487,985$     

Licenses and permits 85,837 -                   -                   85,837             

Charges for services 116,179 -                   -                   116,179          

Fines and forfeitures 344,929 -                   -                   344,929          

Interest income 6,133 996 4,438 11,567             

Proceeds from direct financing lease -                   31,800 -                   31,800             

Grant revenue 266,809 -                   -                   266,809          

Miscellaneous 150,925 -                   -                   150,925          

Total revenues 2,990,118       501,475          4,438               3,496,031       

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government 1,273,306 -                   -                   1,273,306       

Public safety 916,383 -                   -                   916,383          

Service department 56,732 -                   -                   56,732             

Highways and streets 697,552 -                   -                   697,552          

Parks and recreation 193,537 -                   -                   193,537          

Capital outlay -                   -                   97,946             97,946             

Debt service -                   499,972 -                   499,972          

Total expenditures 3,137,510       499,972          97,946             3,735,428       

Excess (deficiency) of 

revenues over expenditures (147,392)         1,503               (93,508)           (239,397)         

Other financing sources (uses)

Proceeds from sale of asset 75,574 -                   -                   75,574             

Transfers in 65,163             -                   -                   65,163             
.

Total other financing

sources (uses) 140,737          -                   -                   140,737          

Net change in fund balances (6,655)              1,503               (93,508)           (98,660)           

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 1,743,751 135,820 892,959 2,772,530       

FUND BALANCES, end of year 1,737,096$     137,323$        799,451$        2,673,870$     
 

Debt Service 

Fund

Total 

Governmental 

FundsGeneral Fund

Capital 

Projects Fund
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(98,660)$            

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in

the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their

estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the

amount of capital assets recorded in the current period. 748,249             

Contribution of capital assets to the water and sewer fund is not 

recorded as an expenditure in the fund financial statements. (331,972)            

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the statement of

activities but does not require the use of current financial resources.

Therefore, depreciation expense is not reported as expenditures in the

governmental funds. (699,465)            

The repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current

financial resources of governmental funds. The transaction, however, has

no effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of

premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,

whereas the amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of

activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the

treatment of long-term debt and related items. 314,055             

Certain revenues in the government-wide statement of activities that do 

not provide current financial resources are not reported as revenue in the 

governmental funds. (31,800)              

Current year changes in long-term liability for compensated absences do

not require the use of current financial resources; therefore, are not

reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 13,010               

Current year changes in net pension position, deferred inflows and

deferred outflows of resources from pensions do not require the use of

current financial resources; therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 

governmental funds. 16,594               

Change in net position of governmental activities (69,989)$            

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 

are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds
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Enterprise Fund

Water and Sewer

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 376,759$                

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $9,955 119,915                  

Total current assets 496,674                  

Noncurrent assets

Property, plant and equipment

Land 210,649                  

Buildings and improvements 559,695                  

Waterworks and sanitary sewer system 14,365,222            

Machinery and equipment 451,151                  

Office equipment 23,353                    

Construction in progress 460,694                  

16,070,764            

Less accumulated depreciation (5,968,253)             

Net property, plant and equipment 10,102,511            

Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 208,238                  

Net pension asset 5,586                       

Total noncurrent assets 10,316,335            

Total assets 10,813,009            

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows related to pensions 77,765                    

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 36,359                    

Accrued payroll and related liabilities 12,266                    

Accrued interest 22,501                    

Due to other funds 3,711                       

Current portion of bonds payable 216,066                  

Current portion of compensated absences 20,287                    

Deposits 124,322                  

Total current liabilities 435,512                  

Noncurrent liabilities

Bonds payable 6,166,847               

Total noncurrent liabilities 6,166,847               

Total liabilities 6,602,359               

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows related to pensions 52,274                    

Net position

Net investment in capital assets 3,697,097               

Restricted for impact fees 83,916                    

Unrestricted 455,128                  

TOTAL NET POSITION 4,236,141$            

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET POSITION
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Enterprise Fund 

Water and 

Sewer

OPERATING REVENUES

Water and sewer service 1,533,449$         

Total operating revenues 1,533,449           

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel services 422,660

Materials and supplies 378,343

Contractual services 316,498

Depreciation 437,426

Total operating expenses 1,554,927           

Operating income (loss) (21,478)              

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Tap fees 263

Investment income 1,978

Miscellaneous 12,364

Interest and fiscal agent fees (174,582)            

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses), net (159,977)            

Income (loss) before transfers and capital contributions (181,455)            

Transfers out (65,163)              

Capital contributions 331,972             

Change in net position 85,354               

NET POSITION, beginning of year, as originally reported 4,150,787

NET POSITION, end of year 4,236,141$         
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Enterprise Fund

Water and Sewer

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers 1,532,450$          

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (688,015)              

Cash payments to employees for services (427,411)              

Net cash provided by operating activities 417,024               

NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers in (65,163)                

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (65,163)                

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Insurance proceeds 12,364                 

Tap fees 263                     

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (53,993)                

Repayment of debt (207,951)              

Interest paid on debt (174,582)              

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (423,899)              

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investment income 1,978                  

Net cash provided by investing activities 1,978                  

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (70,060)                

Cash and cash equivalents,  beginning of year 655,057               

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 584,997$             

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH 

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss) (21,478)$              

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation 437,426               

Change in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable (5,160)                 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (15,428)                

Net changes in pension balances (4,596)                 

Net change in compensated absences 20,287                 

Due to other funds 1,812                  

Deposits 4,161                  

Net cash provided by operating activities 417,024$             

RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Cash and cash equivalents 376,759$             

Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 208,238               

584,997$             

NONCASH FINANCING TRANSACTION

Capital contributions from general fund 331,972$                  
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NOTE 1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The City of Springtown, Texas (the City) is a "general law city" and operates under a Mayor-
Council form of government.  

 
The accounting and reporting policies of the City included in the accompanying basic 
financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America applicable to state and local governments. Generally accepted accounting 
principles for state and local governments include those principles prescribed by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants in the publication entitled Audits of State and Local Governmental Units.  
The more significant accounting policies of the City are described below. 
 
Financial Reporting Entity 

 
The basic financial statements of the City include the primary government organizations 
for which the primary government is financially accountable, and other organizations for 
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are 
such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be 
misleading or incomplete. 

 
The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on the notion of financial 
accountability. A primary government is financially accountable for the organizations that 
make up its legal entity. It is also financially accountable for legally separate 
organizations if its officials appoint a voting majority of an organization's governing body 
and either it is able to impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the 
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial 
burdens on, the primary government. A primary government may also be financially 
accountable for governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent on it. 

 
A primary government has the ability to impose its will on an organization if it can 
significantly influence the programs, projects, or activities of, or the level of services 
performed or provided by, the organization. A financial benefit or burden relationship 
exists if the primary government (a) is entitled to the organization's resources; (b) is 
legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to finance the deficits of, or 
provide financial support to, the organization; or (c) is obligated in some manner for the 
debt of the organization. 
 

There are no entities that were found to be component units of the City. 
 



CITY OF SPRINGTOWN, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 

23 

NOTE 1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
 
Basis of Presentation 

 
The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the activities of the City. The effect of 
interfund activity, within the governmental and business-type activities columns, has 
been removed from these statements. Interfund services provided and used are not 
eliminated in the process of consolidation. Governmental activities, which normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for 
support. 

 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given program are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are 
clearly identifiable with a specific program. Program revenues include 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given program and 2) operating or capital grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular program. Taxes and other items not properly included among program 
revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

 
Fund Financial Statements 

 
The City segregates transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate 
funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. 
Separate statements are presented for governmental and proprietary activities. These 
statements present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial 
statements. 

 
Governmental funds are those funds through which most governmental functions 
typically are financed. The measurement focus of governmental funds is on the sources, 
uses, and balance of current financial resources. The City has presented the following 
major governmental funds: 

 
General Fund 

 
The General Fund is the main operating fund of the City. This fund is used to account for 
all financial resources not accounted for in other funds. All general tax revenues and 
other receipts that are not restricted by law or contractual agreement to some other fund 
are accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges, and 
capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from the 
General Fund. 
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NOTE 1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED  
 

Fund Financial Statements – Continued  
 

Debt Service Fund 
 

The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of financial resources 
for the payment of principal, interest, and related costs on general long-term debt 
paid primarily from taxes levied by the City. The fund balance of the debt service 
fund is restricted to signify the amounts that are exclusively for debt service 
expenditures. 

 
Capital Projects Fund 

 
The capital projects fund is used to account for funds received and expended for the 
construction and renovation of thoroughfares, arterial streets and drainage 
improvements in the City and construction, renovation, expansion and major 
improvement of various city facilities, acquisition of land and other large nonrecurring 
projects. 

 
Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net 
income, financial position, and cash flow. All assets and liabilities are included in the 
statement of net position. The City has presented the following major proprietary fund: 

 
Water and Sewer Fund 

 
The water and sewer fund is used to account for the provision of water and sewer 
services to the residents of the City. Activities of the fund include administration, 
operations, and maintenance of the water and sewer system and billing and 
collection activities. The fund also accounts for the accumulation of resources for, 
and the payment of long-term debt principal and interest for water and sewer debt.  
All costs are financed through charges to utility customers with rates reviewed 
regularly and adjusted if necessary to ensure integrity of the funds. 

 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating 
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services 
and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal 
ongoing operations. Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the cost of 
personnel and contractual services, supplies and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses. 
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NOTE 1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED  
 

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting 
 

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to 
when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the 
financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement 
made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

 

The government-wide statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds are 
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. The economic resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities 
(whether current or non-current) are included on the statement of net position and the 
operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total 
net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when 
earned, including unbilled water and sewer services, which are accrued. Expenses are 
recognized at the time the liability is incurred. 

 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized 
when susceptible to accrual; i.e., when they become both measurable and available. 
“Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” 
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay 
liabilities of the current period. The City considers property taxes as available if they are 
collected within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund 
liability is incurred. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related 
to compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due. 

 
The revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise fees, licenses, 
charges for service, interest income, and intergovernmental revenues. Sales taxes 
collected and held by the state at year end on behalf of the government are also 
recognized as revenue. All other governmental fund revenues are recognized when 
received. 

 
Taxes 

 
Property taxes are levied for appropriation for the fiscal year beginning on October 1, are 
due October 1, attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1, and become 
delinquent on February 1. Property taxes are accrued based on the period for which they 
are levied and available. Delinquent taxes estimated not to be available are treated as 
deferred revenue in the governmental fund financial statements. Property taxes for 
cities, including those applicable to debt service, are limited by the Texas Constitution to 
$2.50 per $100 of assessed valuation. The City's current tax rate is $0.6129 per $100 of 
assessed valuation and assessed valuation is approximately 100% of estimated value. 
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NOTE 1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED  
 

Transactions Between Funds 
 

Legally authorized transfers are treated as interfund transfers and are included in the 
results of operations of both governmental and proprietary funds. Any residual balances 
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are 
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”. 

 

Capital Assets 
 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are 
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the 
government-wide financial statements and in the fund financial statements for 
proprietary funds. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical 
cost if actual historical is not available. Donated assets are valued at their fair value on 
the date donated. Repairs and maintenance are recorded as expenses. Renewals and 
betterments are capitalized. 

 
Assets capitalized, not including infrastructure assets, have an original cost of $1,000 or 
more and over one year of useful life. Depreciation has been calculated on each class of 
depreciable property using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives are as 
follows: 
 

Buildings and improvements 10-20 Years

Office equipment 5-10 Years

Machinery and equipment 3-20 Years

Infrastructure 9-50 Years

Waterworks and sanitary sewer system 5-40 Years

 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

 
In addition to assets, the government wide and proprietary fund statement of net position 
includes a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial 
statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ 
expenditure) until then. In addition to liabilities, the government wide and proprietary 
fund statement of net position and the governmental funds balance sheet will sometimes 
report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial 
statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that 
time. 
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NOTE 1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
 
Compensated Absences 

 
City employees are granted vacation and sick pay in varying amounts.  In the event of 
termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated unused vacation days up to 
maximum accrual depending on years of service. Employees are reimbursed for one-
third of accumulated unused sick leave if the employee has at least five years of service 
and began employment prior to June 1, 2004. Compensated absences are paid out of 
the General Fund, and the liability is accrued with long-term liabilities in the government-
wide financial statements. Employees also receive sick incentive pay each November. In 
the event of termination, an employee who has at least one year of service is reimbursed 
for accumulated unused vacation days up to one and one half times what is eligible to be 
earned in one year, based on years of service. Sick incentive pay is a liability included 
with accrued liabilities in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  

 
Net Position 

 
Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment in 
capital assets, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by 
the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or 
improvements of those assets, and adding back unspent proceeds. Net position is 
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the 
enabling legislations adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by 
creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. When expense is 
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net positions are 
available, the City’s policy is to apply restricted net position first. 
 

Nature and Purpose of Designations of Fund Balance 
 

Fund balance categories are nonspendable and spendable.  Classifications under the 
spendable category are restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned. These 
classifications reflect not only the nature of funds, but also provide clarity to the level of 
restriction placed upon fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is a residual 
classification within the general fund. The general fund should be the only fund that 
reports a positive unassigned balance. In all other funds, unassigned is limited to 
negative residual fund balance.   
 
The City classifies governmental fund balances as follows: 
 

1. Nonspendable Fund Balance – Includes fund balance amounts that cannot be 
spent either because it is not in spendable form or because of legal or 
contractual requirements. Examples include inventories, long-term receivables, 
endowment principal, and/or prepaid/deferred items. 
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NOTE 1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED  
 

Nature and Purpose of Designations of Fund Balance – Continued 
 

2. Spendable Fund Balance 
 

a. Restricted Fund Balance – Includes amounts that can be spent only for the 
specific purposes as imposed by law, or imposed by creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or other governments’ laws and regulations.  Examples include 
federal and state grant programs, retirement of long-term debt, and 
construction. 

 

i. The aggregate fund balance of the debt service fund is legally restricted 
for payment of bonded indebtedness and is not available for other 
purposes until all bonded indebtedness is liquidated. 

ii. The fund balance of the capital projects fund reflects an amount restricted 
for construction and major renovation projects, and it usually represents 
unexpended proceeds from the sale of bonds, which primarily have 
restricted use. 

iii. The proceeds of specific revenue sources which are restricted to 
expenditures for specified purposes as designated by grantors, 
contributors, by vote of citizens, or governmental entities over state or 
local program grants. 
 

b. Committed Fund Balance – Includes amounts that can be used only for the 
specific purposes as determined by the governing body by formal action 
recorded in the minutes of the governing body. Commitments may be 
changed or lifted only by the governing body taking the same formal action 
that imposed the constraint originally. Examples include, but are not 
specifically limited to, council action items, retirement of loans/notes payable, 
and capital expenditures.  The City Council must take action to commit funds 
for a specific purpose prior to the end of the fiscal year, but the amount of the 
commitment may be determined after the end of the fiscal year. 

 

c. Assigned Fund Balance – Includes amounts intended to be used by the City 
for specific purposes. This intent can be expressed by an official or body to 
which the governing body delegates that authority. The City has delegated to 
the City Administrator the ability to determine and define the amounts of 
those components of fund balance that are classified as assigned. Examples 
take on the similar appearance as those enumerated for committed fund 
balance, including the appropriation of existing fund balance to eliminate a 
deficit in next year’s budget. 

 

d. Unassigned Fund Balance – Includes the residual classification of the general 
fund and includes all amounts not contained in other classifications. By 
accounting for amounts in other funds, the City has implicitly assigned the 
funds for the purposes of those particular funds. 



CITY OF SPRINGTOWN, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 

29 

NOTE 1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED  
 

Nature and Purpose of Designations of Fund Balance – Continued 
 

In circumstances where an expenditure is to be made for a purpose for which amounts 
are available in multiple fund balance classifications, the order in which resources will be 
extended is as follows: restricted fund balance, followed by committed fund balance, 
assigned fund balance, and lastly unassigned fund balance. 
 
Based on criteria set forth by the City Council, at the end of each fiscal year, the general 
fund should maintain unassigned fund balance that is no less than 120 days (32.88%) of 
general fund expenditures. This target amount has been established in order to provide 
a reasonable level of assurance that the City’s day-to-day operations will be able to 
continue even if circumstances occur where revenues are insufficient to cover 
expenditures.  
 

New Accounting Pronouncements 
 

The GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, which is 
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015. The objective of this Statement is to 
provide guidance for determining fair value measurement for financial reporting 
purposes and provide guidance for applying fair value to certain investments and 
disclosures related to all fair value measurements. This Statement applies to all state 
and governmental entities. As the District only invests in investment pools and non-
negotiable certificates of deposit during year ended September 30, 2016, this Statement 
had no material impact on the City’s financial statements. 
 
The GASB issued Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool 
Participants, which is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015. This standard 
created an election option for external investment pools and pool participants (local and 
state governments) to continue to utilize amortized cost accounting, rather than fair 
value, for certain investment pools and eliminated the reference to SEC 2a-7 guidance. 
Participants in qualifying pools would be permitted to continue measuring investments at 
amortized cost if they met certain criteria. The Texpool investment pools operate 
pursuant to investment strategies, operating procedures, and protocols that meet the 
criteria of GASB 79, and are, therefore, shown at amortized cost on the City’s financial 
statements. 
 

Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information 
about the fiduciary net position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and 
additions to/deductions from TMRS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are 
recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee, which is when 
contributions are legally due. Benefit payments  
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NOTE 2.   DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 

Cash and cash equivalents as of September 30, 2016, are classified in the accompanying 
financial statements as follows: 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 3,065,921$      

Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 208,238

3,274,159$      

 
 

Cash and investments as of September 30, 2016, consist of the following: 
 

Demand deposits with financial institutions  $      1,112,771 

Certificates of deposit and investment pools          2,161,388 

3,274,159$      

 
 

As noted in Note 1, The City’s investment in TexPool meets the requirements of GASB 79 to 
be reported at amortized cost.  The City’s investment in TexSTAR is reported at net asset 
value (NAV) determined by the pool, which approximates fair value.   
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the 
fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the 
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the 
ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by investing mainly in 
investment pools which purchase a combination of shorter term investments with an 
average maturity of less than 60 days thus reducing the interest rate risk. The City 
monitors the interest rate risk inherent in its portfolio by measuring the weighted average 
maturity of its portfolio. The City has no formal policy related to interest rate risk. 
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NOTE 2.   DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS – CONTINUED  
 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk – Continued  
 

As of September 30, 2016, the City had the following positions subject to interest rate 
risk: 

 

   Investment Type   Amount     Weighted Average Maturity

TexPool 345,521$         41 days

TexSTAR 945,670           46 days

Certificates of deposit 870,197           159 days

     Total  $      2,161,388 

 
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation 
to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a 
nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum 
rating required by (where applicable) the Public Funds Investment Act, the City’s 
investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end for each 
investment type. Certificates of deposit are unrated. 

 

Investment Type     Amount    

Minimum 

Legal Rating

Rating as of 

September 

30, 2015

TexPool  $     345,521 AAA AAAm

TexSTAR         945,670 AAA AAAm

     Total  $  1,291,191 

 
 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
 

The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be 
invested in any one issuer. As of September 30, 2016, other than external investment 
pools and certificates of deposit, the City did not have 5% or more of its investments with 
one issuer.  
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NOTE 2.   DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS – CONTINUED  
 

Custodial Credit Risk 
 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be 
able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The 
custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its 
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The Public 
Funds Investment Act and the City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy 
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or 
investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The Public Funds 
Investment Act requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local 
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a 
depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The 
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least the bank 
balance less the FDIC insurance at all times. 
 

At September 30, 2016, the carrying amount of the City’s cash on hand and deposits 
was $1,112,771 and the bank balance was $1,141,244. The bank balance was covered 
by federal depository insurance or collateral held by the bank in the name of the City.  
 

The Texpool is an external investment pool that is measured at amortized cost. In order 
to meet the criteria to be recorded at amortized cost, investment pool must transact at a 
stable net asset value per share and maintain certain maturity, quality, liquidity and 
diversification requirements within the investment pool.   The investment pool transact at 
a net asset value of $1.00 per share, have weighted average maturity of 60 days or less 
and weighted average life of 120 days or less, investments held are highly rated by 
nationally recognized statistical rating organization, have no more than 5% of portfolio 
with one issuer (excluding US government securities), and can meet reasonably 
foreseeable redemptions.  Texpool has a redemption notice period of one day and no 
maximum transaction amounts. The investment pools’ authorities may only impose 
restrictions on redemptions in the event of a general suspension of trading on major 
securities market, general banking moratorium or national or state emergency that 
affects the pools’ liquidity. 
 
The TexStar is an external investment pool measured at their net asset value.  TexStars’ 
strategy are to seek preservation of principal, liquidity and current income through 
investment in a diversified portfolio of short-term marketable securities.  The City has no 
unfunded commitments related to the investment pool.  TexStar has a redemption notice 
period of one day and may redeem daily. The investment pools’ authorities may only 
impose restrictions on redemptions in the event of a general suspension of trading on 
major securities market, general banking moratorium or national or state emergency that 
affects the pools’ liquidity.    
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NOTE 2.   DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS – CONTINUED  
 

Restricted assets in the enterprise fund are held for the following purposes in accordance 
with refundable deposits, and other legal restrictions: 

 

Refundable deposits  $         124,322 

Impact fees               83,916 

Total restricted assets  $         208,238 

  
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments 
with maturities at the date of purchase of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
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NOTE 3.   CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2016, was as follows: 
 

Balance Balance

Beginning Additions/ Retirements/ End

of Year Completions Adjustments of Year

Governmental activities

Capital assets not

Land  $   4,578,234 723,780$     $             -    $   5,302,014 

Construction in progress         600,000       546,860    (1,029,918)         116,942 

Total capital assets not

being depreciated      5,178,234    1,270,640    (1,029,918)      5,418,956 

Buildings and improvements      1,666,107 105,192              (16,028)      1,755,271 

Office equipment         260,219 20,353                      -           280,572 

Machinery and equipment      1,332,456 50,010               (29,870)      1,352,596 

Infrastructure      9,145,297 -                            -        9,145,297 

Total capital assets

being depreciated     12,404,079       175,555         (45,898)     12,533,736 

Less accumulated depreciation

Buildings and improvements         605,703        90,127         (16,028)         679,802 

Office equipment         224,570        12,583                -           237,153 

Machinery and equipment      1,113,944       121,058         (29,870)      1,205,132 

Infrastructure      3,284,575       475,697                -        3,760,272 

Total accumulated 

depreciation      5,228,792       699,465         (45,898)      5,882,359 

Total capital assets being 

depreciated, net      7,175,287      (523,910)                -        6,651,377 

Governmental activities 

capital assets, net  $ 12,353,521  $   746,730  $(1,029,918)  $ 12,070,333 

being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
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NOTE 3.   CAPITAL ASSETS – CONTINUED  
 

Balance Balance

Beginning Additions/ Retirements/ End

of Year Completions Adjustments of Year

Business-type activities

Capital assets not

being depreciated

Land 222,649$      -$            (12,000)$     210,649$      

Construction in progress 83,221          377,473       -             460,694        

Total capital assets not 

being depreciated 305,870        377,473       (12,000)       671,343        

Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings and improvements 559,695        -              -             559,695        

Office equipment 23,353          -              -             23,353          

Machinery and equipment 458,650        -              (7,500)         451,150        

Waterworks and sewer system 14,344,731    20,492         -             14,365,223    

Total capital assets 

being depreciated 15,386,429    20,492         (7,500)         15,399,421    

Less accumulated depreciation

Buildings and improvements 453,662        14,129         -             467,791        

Office equipment 23,353          -              -             23,353          

Machinery and equipment 362,821        31,849         (7,500)         387,170        

Waterworks and sewer system 4,698,491     391,448       -             5,089,939     

Total accumulated 

depreciation 5,538,327     437,426       (7,500)         5,968,253     

Total capital assets being 

depreciated, net 9,848,102     (416,934)      -             9,431,168     

Business-type activities 

capital assets, net 10,153,972$  (39,461)$      (12,000)$     10,102,511$  

Included in deletions in governmental activities construction in process and in additions 
in business-type activities construction in process is a transfer of $331,972 between 
these activities.    
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NOTE 3.   CAPITAL ASSETS – CONTINUED  
 

Depreciation expense was charged as direct expense to programs of the primary 
government as follows: 

 

Governmental activities  

General government 130,212$         

Public safety 51,740             

Highways and streets 517,513           

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 699,465$         

Business-type activities

Water and sewer 437,426$         

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 437,426$         

 
NOTE 4.   LONG-TERM DEBT 
 

Bonds payable and note payable at September 30, 2016 are comprised of the following 
individual issues: 
 

Governmental Business-type

$3,250,000 Series 2007 Tax and Revenue Certificates of

Obligation due in annual installments of $15,000 to $390,000

through August 15, 2027, with interest at 4.0% to 5.0%. 586,546$        2,523,454$     

$2,680,000 Series 2012 General Obligation Refunding Bonds

due in annual installments of $120,000 to $185,000 through

August 15, 2029, with interest at 2.0% to 3.5%. 1,865,000       175,000          

$3,930,000 Series 2012A Tax and Revenue Certificates of

Obligation due in annual installments of $80,000 to $270,000

through August 15, 2032, with interest at 2.0% to 3.0%. -                 3,635,000       

$2,230,000 Series 2012B Tax and Revenue Certificates of

Obligation due in annual installments of $15,000 to $320,000

through August 15, 2035, with interest at 2.0% to 3.0%. 2,170,000       -                 

$2,075,000 Series 2013 Tax and Revenue Certificates of

Obligation due in annual installments of $60,000 to $130,000

through August 15, 2038, with interest at 1.0% to 4.8%. 1,895,000       -                 

$139,531 note payable to a local government, maturing June

30, 2018, with interest at 2.75%, to be settled with services

provided by the City to the seller annually through the maturity

date. 49,467            -                 

6,566,013$     6,333,454$     
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NOTE 4.   LONG-TERM DEBT – CONTINUED 
 

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the City for the year ended  
September 30, 2016: 
 

Balance Balance

Beginning End

of Year Increase Decrease of Year

Governmental activities

Certificates of obligation 4,752,950$   -$        101,404$  4,651,546$   103,290$   

General obligation 

refunding bonds 2,030,000     -          165,000    1,865,000     155,000     

Note payable 76,451         -          26,984      49,467         28,609      

Capital lease 22,828         -          12,052      10,776         10,776      

Bond premium 160,776        -          11,005      149,771        11,005      

Bond discount (22,467)        -          (1,129)       (21,338)        (1,129)       

Compensated absences 50,531         45,025     58,034      37,522         37,522      

Total governmental

activities 7,071,069     45,025     373,350    6,742,744     345,073     

Business-type activities

General obligation

    refunding bonds 185,000        -          10,000      175,000        10,000      

Certificates of obligation 6,352,050     -          193,596    6,158,454     201,710     

Bond premium 53,814         4,356        49,458         4,354        

Compensated absences 12,866         24,965     17,543      20,288         20,288      

Total business-type

activities 6,603,730     24,965     225,495    6,403,200     236,352     

Total government-

wide activities 13,674,799$ 69,990$   598,845$  13,145,944$ 581,425$   

Due Within 

One Year

The total interest incurred for business-type activities for the year ended September 30, 
2016 was $174,582 and was charged to expense. 

 

General Obligation Bonds and Certificates of Obligation  
 

General obligation bonds and certificates of obligation are issued periodically to provide 
funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. General obligation 
bonds are direct obligations issued on a pledge of the general taxing power for the 
payment of the debt obligations of the City. General obligation bonds and certificates of 
obligation require the City to compute, at the time other taxes are levied, the rate of tax 
required to provide (in each year bonds are outstanding) a fund to pay interest and 
principal at maturity. The City is in compliance with this requirement. 
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NOTE 4.   LONG-TERM DEBT – CONTINUED  
 
Annual Requirements to Retire Debt Obligations 

 
The annual aggregate maturities for each bond type are as follows for fiscal years 
ending September 30: 

 
General obligation bonds: 

 

Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

2017 155,000$      53,225$       10,000$       5,150$         223,375$      

2018 155,000       50,125         10,000         4,950           220,075       

2019 155,000       47,025         10,000         4,750           216,775       

2020 125,000       43,925         10,000         4,550           183,475       

2021 130,000       41,426         15,000         4,350           190,776       

2022-2026 675,000       153,625       70,000         15,600         914,225       

2027-2029 470,000       33,425         50,000         3,850           557,275       

1,865,000$   422,776$      175,000$      43,200$       2,505,976$   

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

Certificates of obligation: 
 

Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

2017  $     103,290 173,636       201,710       169,234        $     647,870 

2018 104,233 171,214       345,767       164,334       785,548

2019 111,119 168,711       353,881       158,344       792,055

2020 131,865 165,400       448,135       151,380       896,780

2021        132,808 161,166       452,192       139,984              886,150 

2022-2026        774,677 727,827       2,550,323     489,996            4,542,823 

2027-2031      1,273,554 551,053       1,591,446     118,963            3,535,016 

2032-2036      1,765,000 246,639       215,000       5,589                2,232,228 

2037-2038        255,000 18,286                    -              -          273,286 

Business-type ActivitiesGovernmental Activities

 $  6,158,454  $  1,397,824  $  4,651,546  $14,591,756  $  2,383,932 
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NOTE 4.   LONG-TERM DEBT – CONTINUED  
 

Annual Requirements to Retire Debt Obligations – Continued 
 

Notes payable: 
 

Principal Interest

2017  $           28,609  $             1,004 

2018 20,858 228

49,467$           1,232$             

Governmental Activities

 
NOTE 5.   CAPITAL LEASES 
 

The City has entered into capital leases for equipment. The current servicing of the capital 
lease with an interest rate of 4.8% is accounted for in the debt service fund. 

 
The following is a schedule by fiscal year of the future minimum lease payments under 
capital leases together with the present value of net minimum lease payments as of 
September 30, 2016: 
 

2017               11,394 

Minimum lease payments               11,394 

Less amount representing interest                    618 

Present value of net minimum lease payments  $           10,776 

 
Included in capital assets is $60,157 of equipment related to capital leases and $18,799 in 
accumulated depreciation. Amortization expense has been included in depreciation expense 
for the year ended September 30, 2016. 
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NOTE 6.   INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 
 

All interfund transfers between the various funds are approved supplements to the 
operations of those funds. 
 

            Transfers Out                          Transfers In                Amount   

General Fund Enterprise Fund  $           266,809 

Transfers were used to move grant funding initially recognized in the general fund to the 
enterprise fund, where the funding was ultimately utilized. 
 

The enterprise fund owes the general fund $3,711 at September 30, 2016. The interfund 
balance is related to employee benefits paid by the general fund, and is to be repaid or 
collected in the normal course of business, within one year of the fiscal year-end. 
 

 

NOTE 7.   EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
 

Plan Description 
 

The City participates as one of 866 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid 
defined benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System 
(TMRS). TMRS is an agency created by the State of Texas and administered in 
accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code (the TMRS 
Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal employees in the State 
of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management of the 
System with a six-member board of trustees.  Although the Governor, with the advice and 
consent of the Senate, appoints the board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of 
Texas. TMRS’s defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 (a) 
of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual 
financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at www.tmrs.com. 

 

All eligible employees of the city are required to participate in TMRS. 
 

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options 
available in the state statutes governing TMRS and within the actuarial constraints also in 
the statutes. Plan provisions for the City were as follows: 
 

Plan Year 2015 Plan Year 2014

Employee deposit rate 7% 7%

Matching ratio (city to employee) 2 : 1 2 : 1

Years required for vesting 5 yrs 5 yrs

Service retirement eligibility (expressed as 

age/years of service)

60/5, 0/20 60/5, 0/20

Updated service credit 100% Repeating, Transfers 100% Repeating, Transfers

Annuity increase (to retirees) 70% of CPI Repeating 70% of CPI Repeating
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NOTE 7.   EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – CONTINUED  
 

Benefits 
 

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted 
by the governing body of the city, within the options available in the state statutes 
governing TMRS. 

 
At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions, with 
interest, and the city-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an 
annuity. Members may choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven 
payments options. Members may also choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a 
partial lump sum distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, 
which cannot exceed 75% of the member’s deposits and interest. 

 
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

 
At the December 31, 2015 valuation and measurement date, the following employees 
were covered by the benefit terms: 

 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 12

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 44

Active employees 39

Total 95  
Contributions 

 
The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee 
gross earnings, and the city matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, 
both as adopted by the governing body of the city. Under the state law governing TMRS, 
the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry 
Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is the 
estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during 
the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 
 
Employees of the City were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross earnings 
during the fiscal year. The contribution rate for the City was 10.68% and 10.14% in 
calendar years 2015 and 2016, respectively. The city’s contributions to TMRS for the 
year ended September 30, 2016, were $151,685, and were equal to required 
contributions. 
 

Net Pension Liability  
 

The City’s net pension asset (NPA) was measured as of December 31, 2015 and the 
total pension liability (TPL) used to calculate the NPA was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. 
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NOTE 7.   EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – CONTINUED  
 
Actuarial Assumptions 

 
The total pension liability in the December 31, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions: 

 

Inflation 2.5% per year

Overall payroll growth 3.0% per year

Investment rate of return 6.75% per year, net of pension plan 

investment expense, including inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active 
members, retirees, and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 
Combined Healthy Mortality Table, with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates 
multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to 
account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct 
RP2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table is used, with slight adjustments. 
 

Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2015, valuation were based on the 
results of actuarial experience studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period 
January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2014, first used in the December 31, 2015 
valuation. Healthy post-retirement mortality rates and annuity purchase rates were 
updated based on a Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 
2011, and dated December 31, 2013. These assumptions were first used in the 
December 31, 2013 valuation, along with a change to the Entry Age Normal (EAN) 
actuarial cost method. Assumptions are reviewed annually. No additional changes were 
made for the 2015 valuation. After the Asset Allocation Study Analysis and experience 
investigation study, the Board amended the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments from 7% to 6.75%.  Plan assets are managed on a total return basis 
with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production of income, in 
order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined 
using a building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real 
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) 
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by 
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. In determining 
their best estimate of a recommended investment return assumption under the various 
alternative asset allocation portfolios, GRS focused on the area between (1) arithmetic 
mean (aggressive) without an adjustment for time (conservative) and (2) the geometric 
mean (conservative) with an adjustment for time (aggressive).  At its meeting on July 30, 
2015, the TMRS Board approved a new portfolio target allocation, this allocation and 
best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized as 
follows: 
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NOTE 7.   EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – CONTINUED  
 

Actuarial Assumptions – Continued  
 

Asset Class Target Allocation

Long Term Expected Real 

Rate of Return (Arithmetic)

Domestic equity 17.5% 4.55%

International equity 17.5% 6.10%

Core fixed income 10.0% 1.00%

Non-core fixed income 20.0% 3.65%

Real return 10.0% 4.03%

Real estate 10.0% 5.00%

Absolute return 10.0% 4.00%

Private equity 5.0% 8.00%

 
Discount Rate 

 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer 
contributions will be made at the rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, 
the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, 
the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

  

Changes in Net Pension Liability 
 

Total Pension 

Liability

Plan Fiduciary 

Net Position

Net Pension 

Liability (Asset)

(a) (b) (a)-(b)

Balance at December 31, 2014 3,497,555$         3,599,011$         (101,456)$           

Changes for the year

Service cost 242,812             -                    242,812             

Interest 250,889             -                    250,889             

Difference between expected 

 and actual experience (212,284)            -                    (212,284)            

Contributions - employer -                    151,685             (151,685)            

Contributions - employee -                    100,931             (100,931)            

Changes in assumptions 42,319               42,319               

Net investment income -                    5,311                 (5,311)                

Benefit payments, including 

refunds of employee contributions (69,673)              (69,673)              -                    

Administrative expense -                    (3,235)                3,235                 

Other changes -                    (160)                   160                    

Net changes 254,063             184,859             69,204               

Balance at December 31, 2015 3,751,618$         3,783,870$         (32,252)$            

Increase ( Decrease)
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NOTE 7.   EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – CONTINUED  
 
Changes in Net Pension Liability – Continued  

 
The following represents the net pension (asset) liability of the City, calculated using the 
discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the City’s net pension liability (asset) would be if 
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower (5.75%) or 1% higher (7.75%) 
that the current rate: 
 

1% Decrease 

in Discount 

Rate (5.75%)

Discount Rate 

(6.75%)

1% Increase in 

Discount Rate 

(7.75%)

City's net pension liability (asset) 605,001$       (32,253)$        (542,799)$      

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately 
issued TMRS financial report that may be obtained online at www.tmrs.com. 

 
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
 Resources Related to Pensions 
 

For the year ended September 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of 
$121,765.  

 
At September 30, 2016, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions consisted of the following: 

 

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred     

Inflows of 

Resources

Difference between expected and actual

economic experience -$                 249,157$         

Changes in actuarial assumptions 32,590             -                   

Difference between projected and actual

investment earnings 222,820           -                   

Contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date 113,133           -                   

Total 368,543$         249,157$         
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NOTE 7.   EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM – CONTINUED  
 
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
 Resources Related to Pensions – Continued  
 

$113,133 reported as deferred outflows related to pensions resulting from contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability for the year ending September 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as 
deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in 
pension expense as follows.  

 
Year ended December 31:

(22,470)$          

(22,470)            

15,544             

35,649             

2017

2018

2019

2020  
 

Other Postemployment Benefits 
 

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-
term life insurance plan operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) 
known as the Supplemental Death Benefit Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by ordinance, 
to provide group-term life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. 
The City may terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by 
adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective the following 
January 1. 
 
The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately 
equal to the employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual 
earnings, for the 12-month period preceding the month of death); retired employees are 
insured for $7,500; this coverage is an “other postemployment benefit,” or OPEB. 
 

Other Postemployment Benefits Contributions 
 
The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an 
annual actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life 
insurance. The funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate 
resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the 
intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life insurance during employees’ entire careers. The 
City’s contributions to the TMRS SDBF for fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014 were $177, 
$177, and $177, respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year. 
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NOTE 8.   RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 
The City participates in the Texas Municipal League Joint Self Insurance Fund (TMLIF) to 
provide both general liability and property insurance. The City, along with other participating 
entities, contributes annual amounts determined by TMLIF management. As claims arise, 
they are submitted to and paid by TMLIF. The City is not liable for payments beyond their 
annual contributions to TMLIF. 

 
The City had no significant changes in insurance coverage from the year ended  
September 30, 2016. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the 
year ended September 30, 2016, nor any of the three preceding years. 
 
 

NOTE 9.   NET INVESTMENT IN DIRECT FINANCING LEASE 
 

In 1999, the City entered into a lease agreement with the Springtown Volunteer Fire 
Department for the lease of the new fire station constructed in 1999 with the proceeds of 
bonds issued by the City. The annual lease payments due from the Volunteer Fire 
Department are equal to the annual debt service payments on the related bonds. The lease 
expires on February 1, 2019, at which time title to the fire station transfers to the Volunteer 
Fire Department. The City has recorded its net investment in the direct financing lease and 
related deferred inflow in the Debt Service Fund at an amount equal to the total minimum 
lease payments to be received over the term of the lease. The City received $31,800 under 
this lease in fiscal year 2016. The following is a schedule by fiscal years of future minimum 
lease payments to be received as of September 30, 2016: 

 

2017  $           15,900 

2018               15,600 

2019               15,000 

 $           46,500 
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NOTE 10.   OPERATING LEASES 
 

The City is committed under various noncancelable operating leases for copiers and postage 
equipment.  Future minimum operating lease commitments are as follows for years ending 
September 30: 

 

2017 9,972$             

2018 8,736               

2019 8,736               

Total 27,444$           

 
Operating lease expenditures were $10,617 for the year ended September 30, 2016.  

 
 

NOTE 11.   BUDGET COMPLIANCE 
 

For the year ended September 30, 2016, the City exceed budgeted expenditures in the 
General Fund for general government expenditures by $204,559 and in total for the General 
Fund by $62,526.  
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2015 2014*

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

Service cost 242,812$        223,669$        

Interest (on total pension liability) 250,889          236,869          

Changes in benefit terms -                  -                  

Difference in expected and actual experience (212,284)         (168,132)         

Change in assumptions 42,319            -                  

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (69,673)           (133,719)         

Net change in total pension liability 254,063          158,687          

Total pension liability, beginning 3,497,555       3,338,868       

Total pension liability, ending 3,751,618$     3,497,555$     

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Contributions - employer 151,685$        115,814$        

Contributions - emploee 100,931          99,955            

Net investment income 5,311              190,465          

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (69,673)           (133,719)         

Administrative expense (3,235)             (1,988)             

Other (160)                (163)                

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 184,859          270,364          

Plan fiduciary net position, beginning 3,599,011       3,328,647       

Plan fiduciary net position, ending 3,783,870$     3,599,011$     

Net position asset, ending (32,252)$         (101,456)$       

Plan fiduciary net postion as a % of total pension net position 100.86% 102.90%

Covered employee payroll 1,441,876$     1,422,298$     

Net pension asset as a % of covered employee payroll 2.24% 7.13%

* The schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years

will be displayed as they become available. 2014 was the first year schedule was reported.
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2016 2015*

Actuarially determined contribution 151,685$         146,276$         

Actual contributions 151,685           146,276           

  Contributions deficiency (excess) -                   -                   

City covered employee payroll 1,504,664$      1,450,988$      

Ratio of actual contributions to covered payroll amount 10.08% 10.08%

* The schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years

will be displayed as they become available. 2015 was the first year schedule was reported.
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Variance With

Final Budget

Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues

Taxes and franchise fees 1,984,812$     1,984,812$     2,019,306$     34,494$          

Licenses and permits 70,025            70,025            85,837            15,812            

Charges for services 123,105          123,105          116,179          (6,926)             

Fines and forfeitures 508,720          508,720          344,929          (163,791)         

Interest income 3,000              3,000              6,133              3,133              

Grant revenue 266,809          266,809          266,809          -                  

Miscellaneous 12,350            12,350            150,925          138,575          

Total revenues 2,968,821       2,968,821       2,990,118       21,297            

Expenditures

Current

General government 1,068,747 1,068,747 1,273,306       (204,559)         

Public safety 1,019,764 1,019,764 916,383          103,381          

Service department 60,663 60,663 56,732            3,931              

Highw ays and streets 714,167 714,167 697,552          16,615            

Parks and recreation 211,643 211,643 193,537          18,106            

Total expenditures 3,074,984       3,074,984       3,137,510       (62,526)           

Excess of revenues 

over expenditures (106,163)         (106,163)         (147,392)         (41,229)           

Other f inancing sources (uses)

Proceeds from sale of asset -                  -                  75,574            75,574            

Transfer in 65,163            65,163            65,163            -                  

Total other financing sources (uses) 65,163            65,163            140,737          75,574            

Net change in fund balances (41,000)           (41,000)           (6,655)             34,345            

Fund balances, beginning of year 1,743,751       1,743,751       1,743,751       -                  

Fund balances, end of year 1,702,751$     1,702,751$     1,737,096$     34,345$          

 

Budgeted Amounts
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NOTE 1.   BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 
 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
budgetary comparison schedule: 

 

1. Not later than the August Council meeting, the City Administrator submits to City 
Council a proposed operating budget for the general, debt service and enterprise 
funds. The City's operating budget, which is consistent with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP), includes expenditures and means of financing them. 
The City has not adopted a formal budget for the capital projects fund.  

 

2. A public hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayer comment. 
 

3. The City Council approves, by ordinance, budget appropriations by September 30. 
Any revisions that alter the total appropriations of any fund must be approved by the 
City Council.  Therefore, the level of budgetary responsibility is by fund. 

 

4. Unused appropriations of the above annually budgeted funds lapse at the end of 
each fiscal year. 

 

5. The City Council may authorize additional appropriations during the year, however, 
no amendments to the budget were made during the year ended September 30, 
2016.  
 
 

NOTE 2.   SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 
 

Valuation Date:

Notes Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of 

December 31 and become effective in January 13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Amortization method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization

Period 25 Years

Asset valuation method 10 Years smoothed market; 15% soft corridor

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases 3.50% to 10.5% including inflation
Investment Rate of Return 6.75%
Retirement Age

Mortality

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's 

plan of benefits. Last updated for the 2015 valuation pursant to 

an experience study of the period 2010 - 2014.

RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment 

with Male rates multiplied by 100% and female rates multiplied 

by 103% and projected on a fully generational basis with scale 

BB.  
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Part D 54 Revised 6-7-2017 

 

Springtown 2017 SWIFT Application 
 
 

Springtown New Wells in Trinity Aquifer 
Project Description and Purpose 

 

This project will develop new wells from the Trinity Aquifer.  The new wells 
will provide the city better water supply mix between surface and ground 
water.  This mix of sources provides redundant water supply and lessens 
surface water dependency which can be adversely influenced in times of 
drought. The proposed wells will be designed and constructed to TCEQ 
public water well standards and then pumped into ground storage 
tanks.  From the tanks, the water will be pumped into the city’s water 
system. 

 
o Design/construction of new wells 

� This includes but is not limited to: 

• Preparing an Environmental Assessment (EA) for 
SWIFT funding requirement.  

• Preparing an Engineering Design Report for the 
TWDB. 

• Testing the well water in accordance to TCEQ 
requirements 

• Inspections as needed 
o Design/construction of appurtenances to facilitate pumping into 

ground storage tank(s) 
� This includes but is not limited to the water lines that goes 

from the water well to the water storage tanks. 
o Design/construction of appurtenances to facilitate pumping into 

the city’s water system 
o Acquisition of one piece property. The city owns property for 

one of the two wells. 
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PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING FEASIBILITY REPORT 

CITY OF SPRINGTOWN, TEXAS 
 

 

Overview: 
The City of Springtown is located in Parker County and has a population of 2,741 people. 

They currently get their water from water wells in the Trinity aquifer as well as raw water from 

Eagle Mountain Lake purchased from Tarrant Regional Water District (TRWD). As Springtown 

continues to grow, they must look at water supply strategies to provide for their citizenry 

including additional water from the Trinity aquifer. 

 

Engineering Feasibility Report: 
The development of new wells will provide the city better water supply mix between 

surface and ground water. This mix of sources provides redundant water supply and lessens 

surface water dependency which can be adversely influenced in times of drought. The proposed 

wells will be designed and constructed to Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) 

public water well standards and then pumped into ground storage tanks. From the tanks, the 

water will be pumped into the city’s water system. 

 

General Description: 
1. Projects Political Information 

a. Subdivision: Parker County 

b. Address: 102 East Second Street, Springtown, Texas, 76082 

c. Telephone Number: (817)220-4834 

d. Legal Owner: City of Springtown 

 

2. Consulting Engineer’s Information 

a. Name: Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

b. Contact: Aaron Redder, P.E. 

c. Address: 2229 San Jacinco Blvd, Suite 330, Denton, TX, 76205 

d. Telephone Number: (940)220-4359 

e. Email. amr@freese.com 

 

3. Financial Assistance Information 

Applicant is requesting funding from the State Water Implementation Fund for Texas 

(SWIFT) program for $1,390,000. The requesting funding will be focused on the 

acquisition, design, and construction phases and are not requesting funding to 

refinance existing debt. 

 

 

3 



PIF12204 

06/01/2017          

Bond Counsel -  

a. Firm Name: Norton Rose Fullbright US LLP 

b. Contact: Paul A. Braden 

c. Address: 2200 Ross Avenue, Suite 3600, Dallas, TX, 75201-7932 

d. Telephone Number: (214)855-8189 

e. Email: paul.bragen@nortonrosefullbright.com 

 

4. Current and Future Populations 

 

The City of Springtown is located in Parker County and has a population of 2,741 people. 

Their population is expected to grow to 5,500 by the year 2030.  They currently get their 

water from water wells in the Trinity aquifer as well as raw water from Eagle Mountain 

Lake purchased from TRWD. As Springtown continues to grow, they must look at water 

supply strategies to provide for their citizenry including additional water from the Trinity 

aquifer. 

 

The new wells will provide the city better water supply mix between surface and ground 

water. This mix of sources provides redundant water supply and lessens surface water 

dependency which can be adversely influenced in times of drought. The proposed wells 

will be designed and constructed to TCEQ public water well standards and then pumped 

into ground storage tanks. From the tanks, the water will be pumped into the city’s 

water system.  

 

5. Existing systems 

 

The City of Springtown currently receives its water supply from two sources, the Trinity 

aquifer as well as raw water purchased from the Trinity River Water District.   

 

Surface Water Supply Source Certificate 

Number 

County Annual Volume 

and Unit 

Eagle Mountain Lake/Tarrant 

Regional Water District 

TX2200367 Parker 340 ac-ft/yr 

Trinity Aquifer  Parker 95 ac-ft/yr 

 

 

6. Existing drinking water problems 

 

Springtown is not experiencing drinking water quality issues.  They are, however, in 

need of redundant water supply for their growing population. 
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From Region C Water Plan Report 

 

7. Proposed project including expansion 

 

The new wells will provide the city better water supply mix between surface and ground  

water.  This mix of sources provides redundant water supply and lessens surface water  

dependency which can be adversely influenced in times of drought. The proposed wells  

will be designed and constructed to TCEQ public water well standards and then  

pumped into ground storage tanks.  From the tanks, the water will be pumped into the  

city’s water system.  

  

o Design/construction of new wells 

� This includes but is not limited to: 

• Preparing an Environmental Assessment (EA) for SWIFT funding 

requirement.  

• Preparing an Engineering Design Report for the TWDB. 

• Testing the well water in accordance to TCEQ requirements 

• Inspections as needed 

o Design/construction of appurtenances to facilitate pumping into ground storage 

tank(s) 

� This includes but is not limited to the water lines that goes from the 

water well to the water storage tanks. 

o Design/construction of appurtenances to facilitate pumping into the city’s water 

system 

o Acquisition of one piece property. The city owns property for one of the two 

wells. 

 

Additional information will be included in the final engineering report. 

 

Alternatives: 
Additional wells are mentioned in the Region C report in the Springtown description. The well 

locations were chosen based on the nearby storage tanks. The tanks are connected to the water 

distribution system and are ideal for the water well to be located nearby to reduce pumping 

costs. 

 

Project Specific Requirements: 

2020 2030 2040 2050 2060 2070

Projected Population (In City Only) 4,079     5,500     5,500     5,500     5,500     5,500     

Projected Water Demand

Municipal Demand 577         757         749         745         744         743         

Total Projected Demand 577         757         749         745         744         743         

(Values in Ac-Ft/Yr)
Projected Population and Demand
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1. New Sources: water well from the Trinity Aquifer 

    

2. Site: See attached map for proposed for water well locations 

    

3. Treatment:  Disinfection of well water 

    

4. Design Data: Preliminary estimates based on surrounding wells anticipates well yield 

between 50 to 100 gpm. 

    

5. Adequacy: The treated well water will be pumped to nearby storage tanks for 

distribution. 

    

6. Operations and Maintenance:  For the operations & maintenance, there will be 

required periodic maintenance to the well pumps and equipment on as needed basis. 

The disinfection units will be similar to the City’s units elsewhere in the system. 

    

 

Alternative Methods for Project Delivery: 
This project is expected to be a design-bid-build project.  If that determination changes it will be 

documented in the final engineering report. 

 

U.S. Iron & Steel Requirements: 
The TWDB SWIFT projects are exempt from the US Iron and Steel requirements. 

 

Cost of the Project: 
The cost of the planning, design and construction of this project is approximated at $1,320,000. 

Please see the TWDB-1201 which is included in the SWIFT Application.  The budget breakdown 

information will be revised in the final Engineering Report. 

 

Project Schedule: 
1. Request loan closing date. 

December 5, 2017 

 

2. Estimated date to submit environmental planning documents. 
April 1, 2018 

 

3. Estimated date to submit engineering planning documents. 

July 1, 2018 
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4. Estimated date for completion of design. 

August 1, 2018 

 

5. Estimated Construction start date for first contract. 

October 1, 2018 

 

6. Estimated Construction end date for last contract. 

October 1, 2019 

 

 

Environmental Document: 
This project will comply with all environmental requirements including TWDB-0800. Additional 

information will be provided in the final engineering report. 

 

 

6 



    PIF12204 

 06/01/2017                

 

Maps: 

 

Exhibit 

1 

CITY OF SPRINGTOWN, TEXAS 
 

 International Plaza 4055 
Suite 200 
Fort Worth, TX  76109 - 4895 
Phone - (817) 735 - 7300 PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

6 . 4  Acres 

3.0 
Acres 

1.2  Acres  Acres . 6 1 

7  Acres 6 . 

. 7 0  Acres 

PROJECT LOCATION 
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P1 TOTAL POPULATION
Universe: Total population
2010 Census Summary File 1

NOTE: For information on confidentiality protection, nonsampling error, and definitions, see http://www.census.gov/prod/cen2010/doc/sf1.pdf.

Census Tract
1404.03 (part),
Parker County

(part),
Springtown city,

Texas

Census Tract
1404.05 (part),
Parker County

(part),
Springtown city,

Texas

Census Tract
1404.09 (part),
Parker County

(part),
Springtown city,

Texas

Census Tract
1404.10 (part),
Parker County

(part),
Springtown city,

Texas

Census Tract
1404.11 (part),
Parker County

(part),
Springtown city,

Texas

Census Tract
1506.01 (part),
Wise County

(part),
Springtown city,

Texas
Total 2,658 0 0 0 0 0

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Census.

1  of 1 04/15/2017
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TWDB-1201

Revised 04/17

Uses

TWDB Funds 

Series 1

TWDB 

Funds 

Series 2

TWDB 

Funds 

Series 3

Total TWDB 

Cost

Other 

Funds Total Cost

Construction 

Construction $831,100 $0 $0 $831,100 $0 $831,100

Subtotal Construction $831,100 $0 $0 $831,100 $0 $831,100

Basic Engineering Fees 

Planning + $24,000 $0 $0 $24,000 $0 $24,000

Design $195,100 $0 $0 $195,100 $0 $195,100

Construction Engineering $51,000 $0 $0 $51,000 $0 $51,000
Basic Engineering Other 

**________________ $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Subtotal Basic Engineering 

Fees $270,100 $0 $0 $270,100 $0 $270,100

Special Services

Application $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Environmental $45,000 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $45,000

Water Conservation Plan $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

I/I Studies/Sewer Evaluation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Surveying $4,900 $0 $0 $4,900 $0 $4,900

Geotechnical $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Testing $1,500 $0 $0 $1,500 $0 $1,500

Permits $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Inspection $500 $0 $0 $500 $0 $500

O&M Manual $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Project Management (by 

engineer) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Pilot Testing $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Water Distribution Modeling $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Special Services  Other 

**__________ $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal Special Services $51,900 $0 $0 $51,900 $0 $51,900

Other

Administration $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Land/Easements Acquisition $86,900 $0 $0 $86,900 $0 $86,900
Water Rights Purchase (If 

Applicable) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Capacity Buy-In  (If 

Applicable) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Legal Expenses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Other **  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal Other Services $86,900 $0 $0 $86,900 $0 $86,900

Fiscal Services

Financial Advisor $33,550 $0 $0 $33,550 $0 $33,550

Bond Counsel $30,000 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $30,000

Issuance Cost $5,060 $0 $0 $5,060 $0 $5,060

Bond Insurance/Surety $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Fiscal/Legal $1,390 $0 $0 $1,390 $0 $1,390

Capitalized Interest $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Bond Reserve Fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Loan Origination Fee $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Other **  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal Fiscal Services $70,000 $0 $0 $70,000 $0 $70,000

Contingency

Contingency $80,000 $0 $0 $80,000 $0 $80,000

Subtotal Contingency $80,000 $0 $0 $80,000 $0 $80,000

TOTAL COSTS $1,390,000 $0 $0 $1,390,000 $0 $1,390,000

Other ** description must be entered

+ For Planning applications under the EDAP Program, please break down Planning costs as follows:

0

0

0

0

0 0 0Total Planning Costs

PRELIMINARY PROJECT BUDGET - Entity Name City of Springtown

Category A

Category B

Category C

Category D
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WRD-253d 
03/16/2016 

Texas Water Development Board 
Water Project Information 

A. Project Name B. Project No. C. County D. Regional 
Planning 
Group (A-P) 

E. Program(s) F. Loan ☐ : $_________________________ 

      Principal Forgiveness ☐: $_____________ 

    Grant ☐ : $_________________________ 

G. Loan Term: 

H. Water Project Description: (Multiphase project, new or expansion; plant, well, storage, pump station, distribution system, etc) 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Attach map of service area affected by Project or other documentation. 

I. Is an Inter Basin Transfer potentially involved? 
 Yes ☐ No ☐ 

J. Is project located in a Groundwater District (If yes, identify District by name)? 
Yes ☐       No ☐ 

K. Service Area Projected 
Population for at least a 20 year 
period: 
(if different from Planning Area, 
discuss in separate attachment) 
 

    Current Population Projected Population 

Year:      20           2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 

Population:       

Project Design Year: 
(Year for which project will be sized)              20   Design Population: 

(Population served by project on the design year)  

L. Is the proposed project included in a current Regional Water Plan? Yes ☐ No ☐ Don’t Know ☐ 
             (If Yes, please specify on what page in the Regional Water Plan - Regional Water Plan Page Number:      

M. What type of water source is associated directly with the proposed project?  Surface Water ☐ Groundwater ☐ Reuse ☐ 

N. Will the project increase the volume of water supply? Yes ☐ No ☐ 

O. What volume of water is the project anticipated to deliver/ treat per year?    Acre-Feet/Year 

P. Current Water Supply Information 
Surface Water Supply Source / Provider Names Certificate No. Source County Annual Volume and Unit 

Groundwater Source Aquifer Well Field location Source County Annual Volume and Unit 

Q. Proposed Water Supply Associated Directly with the Proposed Project 
Surface Water Supply Source / Provider Names Certificate No. Source County Annual Volume and Unit 

Groundwater Source Aquifer Well Field location: Source County Annual Volume and Unit 

R. Consulting Engineer Name Telephone No. E-mail address 

S. Applicant Contact Name, Title Telephone No. E-mail address 
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PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM DATED April 27, 2017  DRAFT 

NEW ISSUE BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY  

On the date of initial delivery of the Obligations (defined below), Bond Counsel (defined on page i) will render its opinion 

substantially in the form attached in APPENDIX C - FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL.   

$1,390,000 

CITY OF SPRINGTOWN, TEXAS  

COMBINATION TAX AND SURPLUS REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION 

SERIES 2017 (the “Obligations”) 

Dated: November 1, 2017 Due:  August 15  

Interest Date: 

 

 

Record Date: 

 Interest on the Obligations will be payable on February 15 and August 15 each year, 

commencing August 15, 2018 (each an “Interest Payment Date”).  The Obligations will 

bear interest at the rates per annum set forth in “APPENDIX A - MATURITY 

SCHEDULE.”   

The close of business on the last business day of the calendar month immediately 

preceding the applicable Interest Payment Date, commencing December 5, 2017.  
 

Date Interest Accrues:  Each Obligation shall bear interest from the Delivery Date thereof or the most recent 

Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or provided for at the rate set 

forth in APPENDIX A, such interest payable semiannually on February 15 and August 

15 of each year until the earliest of maturity or prior redemption, commencing on 

August 15, 2018. 

Redemption:  The Obligations are subject to redemption prior to maturity as provided herein.  See 

“THE OBLIGATIONS - Redemption Provisions” herein.   

Authorized 

Denominations: 

 The Obligations are being issued as fully registered obligations in denominations of 

$5,000, or any integral multiple thereof.  

Paying 

Agent/Registrar/Registrar: 

 The paying agent (“Paying Agent/Registrar/Registrar”) for the Obligations is The Bank 

of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. 

Book-Entry-Only System  Upon initial issuance, the ownership of the Obligations will be registered in the 

registration books of the Issuer kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar, in the name of Cede 

& Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”) 

to which principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest payments on the 

Obligations will be made.   The purchasers of the Obligations will not receive physical 

delivery of obligation certificates.  Principal of, interest, and premium if any, on the 

Obligations will be payable at the designated office of the Paying Agent/Registrar in 

Dallas, Texas as the same become due and payable.  

Issuer:  City of Springtown, Texas   

Official Action:  Ordinance No. ______ dated XXXX, 2017. 

Purpose:  See “APPENDIX B - OFFICIAL ACTION.” 

Security for the 

Obligations: 

 See APPENDIX B - OFFICIAL ACTION.”  

Ratings:    See “OTHER INFORMATION - Ratings” 

Delivery Date:  December 5, 2017.  

   

See “APPENDIX A - MATURITY SCHEDULE” for Principal Amounts, Maturities, Interest Rates, 

Prices or Yields, and Initial CUSIP Numbers 
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CITY OF SPRINGTOWN, TEXAS 

 

102 E. 2nd Street 

Springtown, TX  76082-0444 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

Tom Clayton – Mayor  

Robert E. Wilson – Mayor pro-Tem 

Annette Burk – Council Member 

Harold Buffington – Council Member 

Dennie Harms – Council Member 

Greg Hood – Council Member 

 

 

SELECTED ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 
 

Doug Hughes – City Administrator 

Denise Taylor – Finance Manager 

 

 

 

 

Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, Dallas, Texas - Bond Counsel 

 

FirstSouthwest, a Division of Hilltop Securities Inc., Dallas, Texas - Financial Advisor 

 

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas - Paying Agent/Registrar 

 

Freese and Nichols, Inc., Dallas, Texas - Project Engineer 
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Private Placement Memorandum 

relating to 

$1,390,000 

CITY OF SPRINGTOWN, TEXAS  

COMBINATION TAX AND SURPLUS REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION 

SERIES 2017 (the “Obligations”) 

INTRODUCTION 

This Private Placement Memorandum, including the cover page and appendices, contains brief descriptions 

of the Issuer, provides certain information with respect to the issuance by the Issuer, and summaries of certain 

provisions of the “Obligations” pursuant to the Official Action.  Except as otherwise set forth herein, capitalized terms 

used but not defined in this Private Placement Memorandum have the meanings assigned to them in the Official 

Action.  See “APPENDIX B – “FORM OF OFFICIAL ACTION” attached hereto.  

APPENDIX A contains the maturity schedule for the Obligations. APPENDIX B contains the Official Action 

and a description of the purpose for the proceeds of the Obligations.  APPENDIX C contains a copy of the proposed 

opinion of Bond Counsel with respect to the Obligations.  The summaries of the documents contained in the forepart 

of this Private Placement Memorandum are not complete or definitive, and every statement made in this Private 

Placement Memorandum concerning any provision of any document is qualified by reference to such document in its 

entirety. 

THE OBLIGATIONS 

General Description 

The Obligations are being issued in the aggregate principal amount set forth in APPENDIX A of this Private 

Placement Memorandum and will mature and be subject to redemption prior to maturity as described therein.  The 

Obligations are being issued as fully registered obligations in denominations of $5,000, or any integral multiple 

thereof.  The Obligations will be dated as of the date of issue and will mature on the dates referenced thereon, and will 

bear interest at the rates per annum set forth in “APPENDIX A - MATURITY SCHEDULE.” 

Interest on the Obligations is payable semiannually on each Interest Payment Date, and will be calculated on 

the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months.  Principal of and the redemption price with respect to 

the Obligations will be payable to the Owners upon presentation and surrender at the principal office of the Paying 

Agent/Registrar. 

Purpose 

See “APPENDIX B - FORM OF OFFICIAL ACTION.” 

 

Authority for Issuance  

The Obligations are issued pursuant to Chapter 1502, Texas Government Code, as amended, and the Official 

Action adopted by the Issuer.   

Security for the Obligations  

See “APPENDIX B - FORM OF OFFICIAL ACTION.”  

Redemption Provisions 

“On February 15, 2028 or on any date thereafter, the Obligations may be redeemed prior to their scheduled 

maturities, at the option of the Issuer, in whole or in part, in inverse order of maturity, in principal amounts of $5,000 

or an integral multiple thereof (and if within a state maturity by lot by the Paying Agent/Registrar), at a redemption 

price equal to the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.” 
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Notice of Redemption; Selection of Obligations to Be Redeemed 

See “APPENDIX B - FORM OF OFFICIAL ACTION.”  

The Paying Agent/Registrar, so long as a Book-Entry-Only System is used for the Obligations, will send any 

notice of redemption of the Obligations, notice of proposed amendment to the Official Action or other notices with 

respect to the Obligations only to DTC. Any failure by DTC to advise any DTC participant, or of any DTC participant 

or indirect participant to notify the beneficial owner, shall not affect the validity of the redemption of the Obligations 

called for redemption or any other action premised on any such notice. Redemption of portions of the Obligations by 

the Issuer will reduce the outstanding principal amount of such Obligations held by DTC. 

Book-Entry-Only System 

The information in this caption concerning The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”) 

and DTC’s book entry system has been obtained from DTC and the Issuer makes no representation or warranty nor 

takes any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of such information. 

DTC will act as securities depository for the Obligations.  The Obligations will be issued as fully-registered 

securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested 

by an authorized representative of DTC.  One fully-registered certificate will be issued for each maturity of the 

Obligations and deposited with DTC. See APPENDIX B - “FORM OF OFFICIAL ACTION.” 

DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking 

organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing 

corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  DTC holds and provides asset 

servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money 

market instrument (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (the “Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  

DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions, in 

deposited securities, through electronic computerized book entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ 

accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates.  Direct Participants include both 

U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other 

organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC 

is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearance Corporation, and Fixed Income Clearance 

Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  

Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, 

banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct 

Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  DTC has a Standard & Poor’s rating of “AA+”.”  

The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More 

information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org. 

TAX MATTERS 

Opinion 

Bond Counsel will deliver its opinion on the date of delivery of the Obligations substantially in the form as 

attached in “APPENDIX C - FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL.”  

OTHER INFORMATION 

Forward Looking Statements 

The statements contained in this Private Placement Memorandum, including the cover page, appendices, and 

any other information or documents provided by the Issuer, that are not purely historical, are forward-looking 

statements, including statements regarding the Issuer’s expectations, hopes, intentions, or strategies regarding the 

future.  Holders and beneficial owners of the Obligations have placed reliance on forward-looking statements.  All 

forward looking statements included in this Private Placement Memorandum are based on information available to 
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the Issuer on the date hereof.  It is important to note that the Issuer’s actual results could differ materially from those 

in such forward-looking statements.  

Ratings  

No application has been made to any ratings agency or municipal bond insurance company for qualification 

of the Obligations for ratings or municipal bond insurance, respectively. 

LITIGATION 

General 

On the date of delivery of the Obligations to the initial purchasers thereof, the Issuer will execute and deliver 

a certificate to the effect that, except as disclosed herein, no litigation of any nature has been filed or is pending, as of 

that date, to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of the Obligations or which would affect the provisions made 

for their payment or security or in any manner questioning the validity of the Obligations.   

The Issuer 

There is no litigation, proceeding, inquiry, or investigation pending by or before any court or other 

governmental authority or entity (or, to the knowledge of the Issuer, threatened) that adversely affects the power, 

authority or obligation of the Issuer to deliver the Obligations, the security for, or the validity of, the Obligations or 

the financial condition of the Issuer.   

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION 

In the Official Action, the Issuer has made the following agreement for the benefit of the holders and 

beneficial owners of the Obligations.  The Issuer is required to observe the agreement for so long as it remains 

obligated to advance funds to pay the Obligations.  Under the agreement, the Issuer will be obligated to provide certain 

updated financial information and operating data, and timely notice of specified material events, to the Municipal 

Securities Rulemaking Board through the Electronic Municipal Market Access System. SEE APPENDIX B - “FORM 

OF OFFICIAL ACTION.” 

Compliance with Prior Undertakings 

During the last five years, the Issuer has complied in all material respects with its continuing disclosure 

agreements in accordance with SEC Rule 15c2-12. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Any statements made in this Private Placement Memorandum involving matters of opinion or of estimates, 

whether or not so expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no representation is 

made that any of the estimates will be realized.  Neither this Private Placement Memorandum nor any statement that 

may have been made verbally or in writing is to be construed as a contract with the owners of the Obligations. 

The information contained above is neither guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness nor to be construed as 

a representation by the Issuer.  The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice 

and neither the delivery of this Private Placement Memorandum nor any sale made hereunder is to create, under any 

circumstances, any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer or the Issuer from the date 

hereof. 

The Private Placement Memorandum is submitted in connection with the sale of Obligations to the Texas 

Water Development Board on the Delivery Date and may not be reproduced or used, as a whole or in part, for any 

other purpose. 
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

The Private Placement Memorandum speaks only as of its date and the information contained herein is 

subject to change.  Descriptions of the Obligations and the Official Action and any other agreements and documents 

contained herein constitute summaries of certain provisions thereof and do not purport to be complete.  This Private 

Placement Memorandum was approved by the Issuer. 
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APPENDIX A 

MATURITY SCHEDULE 

CUSIP Prefix:  851830 

 

Principal Interest Initial

Maturity Amounts Rate Yield CUSIP

8/15/2019 $35,000

8/15/2020 35,000

8/15/2021 35,000

8/15/2022 35,000

8/15/2023 35,000

8/15/2024 40,000

8/15/2025 40,000

8/15/2026 40,000

8/15/2027 40,000

8/15/2028 40,000

8/15/2029 40,000

8/15/2030 40,000

8/15/2031 45,000

8/15/2032 45,000

8/15/2033 45,000

8/15/2034 45,000

8/15/2035 50,000

8/15/2036 50,000

8/15/2037 50,000

8/15/2038 55,000

8/15/2039 55,000

8/15/2040 55,000

8/15/2041 55,000

8/15/2042 60,000

8/15/2043 60,000

8/15/2044 65,000

8/15/2045 65,000

8/15/2046 65,000

8/15/2047 70,000
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FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 


	Application for Financial Assistance
	Part A: General Information
	Part B: Legal Information
	Part C: Financial Information
	Part D: Project Information
	Part E: State Water Implementation Fund for Texas

	Attachments
	Part A: General Information
	Part A6: Consultant Services
	Part A6a: Engineer 
	Part A6b: Bond Counsel
	Part A6c: Financial Advisor


	Part B: Legal
	Part B17: Resolution
	Part B18: Application Affidavit
	Part B19: Certificate of Secretary
	Part B21: Issuance of Parity Debt
	Part B22: CNN and Maps
	Part B23: Enforcement Actions
	Part B25: 2016 Water Conservation Drought Contingency Plan
	Part B26: Water Use Survey
	Part B27: Water Loss Audit

	Part C: Financial
	Part C39: Assessed Values by Classification
	Part C40: Direct and Overlapping Tax Table
	Part C45: Proforma for Debt Outstanding
	Part C46: Five Year Comparison
	Part C47: Annual Audit and Management Letter
	Part C49: Outstanding Debt Schedule

	Part D: Project Information
	Part D54: Description and Purpose
	Part D54a: Springtown Preliminary Engineering Report

	Part D56: City of Springtown Well Locations
	Project Maps
	Part D57: Census Tract Information
	Part D59: Region C Water Plan Report
	Part D60: TWDB 1201
	Project Budget Summary
	Part D61: WRD-253d
	Water Project Information Form 
	Part D64: Site Certificate ED 101

	Part E: State Water Implementation Fund for Texas
	Part E71b: Private Placement Memorandum



	C County: Parker and Wise
	E Programs: SWIFT
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	Grant: Off
	G Loan Term: 
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	Certificate No: TX2200367
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